
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
AGENDA 

Thursday, January 23, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. held 
Virtually https://video.businessconnect.telus.com/join/385887700  (Meeting ID # 385887700) and Physically 

in Smoky Lake County Council Chambers, 4612 McDougall Drive, Smoky Lake 
 

************************************************************************************************************************** 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Adoption of Agenda 

 
3. Adoption of Minutes 

3.1. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting, Thursday, January 9, 2025 
 

4. Delegation(s) 
4.1. Casey Tchir, Landowner, to discuss an offer to purchase County-Owned Land, in Executive 

Session, under the authority of the FOIP Act Section 16: Third party business interests and Section 
27: Privileged information @ 9:30 a.m. 

 
5. Public Hearing 

 Nil 
 

6. Municipal Planning Commission (MPC)  
 Nil 

 
PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER PERIOD - announced between 11:30 a.m. & 12:00 p.m. 

 
7. Business – Requests for Decisions 

7.1. Bylaw No. 1464-24: Non-Residential Tax Incentive 
7.2. Family and Community Support Services (FCSS) Grant Applications 
7.3. Property Tax Sale Results 
7.4. Policy Statement No. 62-06-02: Agricultural Service Board Poster Contest 
7.5. Policy Statement No. 62-28-07: Mowing Program  
7.6. Bylaw No. 1472-25: LUB Amendment for NE-34-59-13-W4 from Residential to Agricultural Land 
7.7. Alberta CARE (Coordinated Action for Recycling Enterprises) Spring Seminar 
7.8. Peace Officer Policy Statement No. 02-39-01: Primary Highway Enforcement  

& Policy Statement No. 02-13-02: Emergency Vehicle Operations 
7.9. Peace Officer Policy Statement No. 02-11-16: Peace Officer Annual Reporting 
7.10. Ukrainian Twinning Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Kosiv 
7.11. Smoky Lake Regional Heritage Board Recommendations 
7.12. RMA Rural Municipalities of Alberta, Spring Convention 
7.13. Meeting Requests with Ministers at the Spring RMA Convention 
7.14. Bonnie Lake Resort Community in-kind assistance 

 
8. Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Report 

8.1. CAO Report – December 6, 2024 to January 16, 2025 
8.2. Strategic Priorities Progress Update to December 31, 2024 

 
 

patti
Typewritten Text

patti
Typewritten Text

patti
Typewritten Text



Smoky Lake County Council Agenda 
January 23, 2025 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

9. Council Committee Reports 
9.1. Division One 
9.2. Division Two 
9.3. Division Three (Deputy Reeve) 
9.4. Division Four 
9.5. Division Five (Reeve) 

 
10. Correspondence  

10.1. Smoky Lake County Community Learning Council, Thank You for 50 years 1975 to 2025 
10.2. Inside Outside Studio Inc., Landowner Map Sale Revenue to the County, dated January 7, 2025 
10.3. RMA Rural Municipalities of Alberta, January 2025, Member Visit Schedule  
10.4. RMA Rural Municipalities of Alberta, January 6, 2025, Board Governance Review Member 

Survey 
 

11. Information Release 
Nil. 

 
12. Financial Reports 

12.1. Budget to Actual Reports as at December 31, 2024 
12.2. Bills & Accounts Report as of January 23, 2025 
 

13. Next Meetings 
13.1. Reconfirm Smoky Lake County Council’s scheduled upcoming Meetings are as follows: 

Thursday, February 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, February 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, March 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), and 
Thursday, March 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular). 
 

14. Executive Session 
14.1. Land Issue: in respect to an offer to purchase County-Owned lands legally described as SE-

08-62-13-W4 & SW-08-62-13-W4 (near Whitefish Lake), under the authority of the FOIP Act 
Section 16: Third party business interests and Section 27: Privileged information 

 
15. Adjournment. 



County Council Meeting          15827 
January 9, 2025 

 

 SMOKY LAKE COUNTY 
 

Minutes of the County Council Meeting held on Thursday, January 9, 
2025, at 9:01 A.M. held both virtually online and physically in Council 
Chambers. 

The meeting was called to order by the Deputy Reeve, Dominique Céré, 
in the presence of the following persons: 
 

   ATTENDANCE 
 Div. No. Councillor(s) Thursday, Jan. 9, 2025 
 1 Dan Gawalko Present in Chambers 
 2 Linda Fenerty Present in Chambers 
 3 / Deputy Reeve Dominique Céré Present in Chambers 

 4 Lorne Halisky Present in Chambers 
 5 / Reeve Jered Serben Virtually Present 
 CAO Kevin Lucas Present in Chambers 
 Finance Manager Brenda Adamson Absent 
 Executive Srv/RS Patti Priest Present in Chambers 
    
 ********************************************************* 
 Observers in Attendance Upon Call to Order: 

 Comm. Officer Evonne Zukiwski Virtually Present 
 P & D Manager Jordan Ruegg Virtually Present 
 Fire Srv/Muni Clerk Meaghan Andreychuk Virtually Present 
 GIS Operator Carole Dowhaniuk Virtually Present 
 Health & Safety Cor. Jasmine Schaub Virtually Present 
 Acting Ag Fieldman Kierstin Dubitz Virtually Present 

 Public 2 Members  Present 
    
    
 2. Agenda: 

 
209-25: Fenerty That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting Agenda for Thursday, 

January 9, 2025, be adopted, as presented.  
Carried Unanimously. 

 
 3.  Minutes: 

 
3.1. Minutes of the Committee of the Whole Council Meeting, December 4, 2024 
210-25: Halisky That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Committee of the Whole 

Council Meeting, held on Wednesday, December 4, 2024, be adopted as 
presented. 

Carried. 
 

3.2. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting, December 12, 2024 
211-25: Gawalko That the minutes of the Smoky Lake County Regular Council Meeting, 

held on Thursday, December 12, 2024, be adopted as presented. 
 

Carried. 
 

 5. Public Hearing: 
 
 Nil. 

 
 

 6. Municipal Planning Commission (MPC): 
 

 Nil. 
 
 
 

patti
Typewritten Text
#3.1



County Council Meeting          15828 
January 9, 2025 

 

 7. Request for Decision: 
 

7.1. Bylaw No. 1468-25: Designation of the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a Municipal 
Historic Resource 
212-25: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1468-25: Designation of the 

Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a Municipal Historic Resource, 
being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the Bellis Store & Heritage 
Shoppe as a Municipal Historic Resource, be given FIRST READING. 

 
Carried. 

 
 Moved by Councillor Gawalko that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1468-25: Designation of the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a 
Municipal Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of 
designating the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given SECOND READING. 

  Carried. 
 
 Moved by Councillor Halisky that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1468-25: Designation of the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a 
Municipal Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of 
designating the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given PERMISSION for THIRD AND FINAL 
READING. 
                    Carried Unanimously. 

 
 Moved by Councillor Fenerty that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1468-25: Designation of the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a 
Municipal Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of 
designating the Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given THIRD and FINAL READING and the Reeve and 
Chief Administrative Officer be hereby authorized to fix their signatures 
to all necessary documents and the corporate seal be fastened where it 
is deemed to be necessary. 

Carried. 
  
 

 
 

Scott Franchuk, Fire Chief, virtually joined the meeting, time 9:09 a.m. 
 
Daniel Moric, Natural Gas Manager, virtually joined the meeting, time 
9:11 a.m. 
 
One Member of the Public, virtually joined the meeting, time 9:13 a.m. 
 
 
 

7.2. Bylaw No. 1469-25: Designation of the White Earth School Hall as a Municipal 
Historic Resource 
213-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1469-25: Designation of the 

White Earth School Hall as a Municipal Historic Resource, being a 
bylaw for the purpose of designating the White Earth School Hall as a 
Municipal Historic Resource, be given FIRST READING. 

Carried. 
 

 Moved by Councillor Serben that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1469-25: Designation of the White Earth School Hall as a Municipal 
Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the 
White Earth School Hall as a Municipal Historic Resource, be given 
SECOND READING. 

  Carried. 
 
 



County Council Meeting          15829 
January 9, 2025 

 

 Moved by Councillor Gawalko that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1469-25: Designation of the White Earth School Hall as a Municipal 
Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the 
White Earth School Hall as a Municipal Historic Resource, be given 
PERMISSION for THIRD AND FINAL READING. 
 
                    Carried Unanimously. 

 
 

 Moved by Councillor Fenerty that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1469-25: Designation of the White Earth School Hall as a Municipal 
Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the 
White Earth School Hall as a Municipal Historic Resource, be given 
THIRD and FINAL READING and the Reeve and Chief 
Administrative Officer be hereby authorized to fix their signatures to all 
necessary documents and the corporate seal be fastened where it is 
deemed to be necessary. 

Carried. 
 
 

7.3. Bylaw No. 1470-25: Designation of the MacDonald Stopping House General Store & 
Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic Resource 
214-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1470-25: Designation of the 

MacDonald Stopping House General Store & Pine Creek Post 
Office as a Municipal Historic Resource, being a bylaw for the 
purpose of designating the MacDonald Stopping House General Store 
& Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic Resource, be given 
FIRST READING. 

Carried. 
 
 

 Moved by Councillor Gawalko that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1470-25: Designation of the MacDonald Stopping House General 
Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic Resource, 
being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the MacDonald Stopping 
House General Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given SECOND READING. 

  Carried. 
 
 
 Moved by Councillor Fenerty that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1470-25: Designation of the MacDonald Stopping House General 
Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic Resource, 
being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the MacDonald Stopping 
House General Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given PERMISSION for THIRD AND FINAL 
READING. 
                    Carried Unanimously. 

 
 

 Moved by Councillor Serben that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1470-25: Designation of the MacDonald Stopping House General 
Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic Resource, 
being a bylaw for the purpose of designating the MacDonald Stopping 
House General Store & Pine Creek Post Office as a Municipal Historic 
Resource, be given THIRD and FINAL READING and the Reeve and 
Chief Administrative Officer be hereby authorized to fix their signatures 
to all necessary documents and the corporate seal be fastened where it 
is deemed to be necessary. 

Carried. 
 
 



County Council Meeting          15830 
January 9, 2025 

 

7.4. Policy Statement No. 62-05-07: Grasshopper Control Compensation 
215-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Policy Statement No. 62-05-07: Grasshopper 

Control Compensation, be amended: 

 

 

 
Carried. 

 
 



County Council Meeting          15831 
January 9, 2025 

 

7.5. Policy Statement No. 62-08-01: Agricultural Use of Municipal Right of Way 
216-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Policy Statement No. 62-08-01: Agricultural 

Use of Municipal Right of Way, be adopted: 

 
 

 



County Council Meeting          15832 
January 9, 2025 

 

 

 
 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15833 
January 9, 2025 

 

Policy Statement No. 62-17-02: License of Occupation of Road Allowance for Ranching and 
Farming Purposes 
217-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Policy Statement No. 62-17-02: License of 

Occupation of Road Allowance for Ranching and Farming Purposes, be 
rescinded as made redundant by Policy Statement No. 62-08-01: 
Agricultural Use of Municipal Right of Way. 

Carried. 
 

7.6. Policy Statement No. 62-30-01: Animal Health & Livestock Emergency 
Preparedness 
218-25: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Policy Statement No. 62-30-01: Animal 

Health & Livestock Emergency Preparedness, be adopted: 

 

 
Carried. 

 
 
 

One Member of the Public, virtually joined the meeting, time 9:27 a.m. 



County Council Meeting          15834 
January 9, 2025 

 

 
 

Town of Smoky Lake Family and Community Support Services (FCSS), 
Director, Rachelle Amyotte, and Chief Administrative Officer, Dawn 
Phillips, entered Council Chambers, time 9:27 a.m. 
 

7.7. Bylaw No. 1471-25: Fire Protection Services 
219-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 1471-25: Fire Protection 

Services, being a bylaw of providing for the establishment and operation 
of fire protection services, be given FIRST READING. 

Carried. 
 

 Moved by Councillor Gawalko that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1471-25: Fire Protection Services, being a bylaw of providing for the 
establishment and operation of fire protection services, be given 
SECOND READING. 

  Carried. 
 
 Moved by Councillor Fenerty that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1471-25: Fire Protection Services, being a bylaw of providing for the 
establishment and operation of fire protection services, be given 
PERMISSION for THIRD AND FINAL READING. 
 
                    Carried Unanimously. 

 
 Moved by Councillor Serben that Smoky Lake County Bylaw No. 
1471-25: Fire Protection Services, being a bylaw of providing for the 
establishment and operation of fire protection services, be given 
THIRD and FINAL READING and the Reeve and Chief 
Administrative Officer be hereby authorized to fix their signatures to all 
necessary documents and the corporate seal be fastened where it is 
deemed to be necessary. 

Carried. 
 

7.8. North Saskatchewan Watershed Alliance (NSWA) Membership for 2025 
220-25: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council approve to purchase a Year-2025 

membership in the amount of $1,510.20 as per their invoice #2025.028, 
dated October 02, 2024, calculated as a per capita funding request based 
on a population of 2,517 x $0.60/capita, to North Saskatchewan 
Watershed Alliance (NSWA). 

Carried. 
 

 4. Delegation: 
 

4.1.  Town of Smoky Lake Family and Community Support Services (FCSS), Director, 
Rachelle Amyotte, to discuss a proposal for Regional FCSS 
 Physically Present before Council from 9:33 a.m. to 9:53 a.m., was 

Town of Smoky Lake Family and Community Support Services (FCSS), 
Director, Rachelle Amyotte, and Chief Administrative Officer, Dawn 
Phillips, to discuss a proposal for Regional FCSS, with the following 
presentation, including but not limited to the following slides: 
 

 



County Council Meeting          15835 
January 9, 2025 

 

 

 
 
 

221-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council acknowledge the information 
received from the January 9, 2025, Delegation: Town of Smoky Lake 
Family and Community Support Services (FCSS), Director, Rachelle 
Amyotte, with Chief Administrative Officer, Dawn Phillips, in respect 
to Regional FCSS. 

Carried. 
 

 
 

Town of Smoky Lake Family and Community Support Services (FCSS), 
Director, Rachelle Amyotte, and Chief Administrative Officer, Dawn 
Phillips, left Council Chambers, time 9:54 a.m. 
 

 
 

One Member of the Public, virtually joined the meeting, time 10:00 a.m. 

 7. Delegation: 
 

7.9. Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) Membership for 2025 
222-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council approve to purchase a Year-2025 

membership in the amount of $829.08, as per their invoice #INV-43416-
D1L7Q3, dated December 17, 2024, calculated as a per capita funding 
request based on a population of 2,517 x $0.2263/capita, to Federation 
of Canadian Municipalities (FCM). 

Carried. 
 

7.10. Go East of Edmonton Membership for 2025 
223-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council approve to purchase a Year-2025 

membership in the amount of $400.00 to Go East of Edmonton. 
 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15836 
January 9, 2025 

 

 8. Chief Administrative Officer’s Report: 
 

8.1 Action List from October 2024 Council Meetings 
224-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council accept Action List report from the 

October 2024 Council Meetings, as information. 
Carried. 

 
8.2 Action List from November 2024 Council Meetings 
225-25: Fenerty That Smoky Lake County Council accept Action List report from the 

November 2024 Council Meetings, as information. 
Carried. 

 
8.3 Action List from December 2024 Council Meetings 
226-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council accept Action List report from the 

December 2024 Council Meetings, as information. 
Carried. 

 
8.4. Ratification of the Collective Agreement with CUPE Local 4575 
227-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council approve the ratification of the 

Collective Agreement between Smoky Lake County and the Canadian 
Union of Public Employees (CUPE) Local 4575, effective January 1, 
2025, to December 31, 2026. 

Carried. 
 

8.5. Ratification of the Collective Agreement with IUOE Local 955 
228-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County Council approve the ratification of the 

Collective Agreement between Smoky Lake County and the 
International Union of Operating Engineers (IUOE) Local 955, effective 
January 1, 2025, to December 31, 2026. 

Carried. 
 

 9. Council Committee Reports: 
 
 Nil. 

 
 

 10.    Correspondence: 
 

10.1. Federation of Alberta Gas Co-ops Ltd. Spring 2025 Zone Meeting 
229-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County Council who can attend – attend the 

Federation of Alberta Gas Co-ops Ltd., Spring 2025 Zone Meeting, 
scheduled for February 21, 2025, to be held at a location to be 
determined. 

Carried. 
 

10.2. Alberta Transportation & Economic Corridors – Response to the Fall RMA Meeting 
230-25: Serben That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from Alberta Transportation and Economic Corridors Regional 
Director, dated December 20, 2024, responding to the 2024 Fall RMA 
meeting noting “As part of the safety improvements along the Highway 
28 corridor, the existing intersection at Highway 28 and Highway 855 
will be replaced with a two-lane roundabout. An engineering consultant 
has been engaged and design work is underway. In addition, the 
following safety improvements are identified for west of Smoky Lake to 
Highway 36: 

 12 intersection improvements; 
 upgrading an existing Safety Rest Area; 
 constructing two new Safety Rest Areas; 
 constructing five new climbing/passing lanes; and 
 improving three horizontal curves.” 

Carried. 
 



County Council Meeting          15837 
January 9, 2025 

 

10.3. County of Stettler No. 6 - Non-Renewal of FCM Membership for 2025 
231-25: Serben That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from County of Stettler No. 6 to Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities (FCM), dated December 16, 2024, formally notify the 
FCM of their decision to not renew their membership for the 2025 fiscal 
year. 

Carried. 
 

10.4. Del Huchulak Letter in respect to the St. Albert Gazette’s Oct. 31, 2024, Article  
232-25: Halisky That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from Del Huchulak, received December 1, 2024, in respect to 
the St. Albert Gazette’s October 31, 2024, article titled “Advocacy plays 
crucial role in thriving communities”. 

Carried. 
 

10.5. Minister of Public Safety & Emergency Services, Civilian Governance of RCMP  
233-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from the Minister of Public Safety & Emergency Services, 
dated November 20, 2024, in respect to civilian governance of the 
RCMP and frequently asked questions. 

Carried. 
 

10.6. Call for RMA District 5 Agenda items to add to the January 24, 2025 Meeting 
234-25: Serben That Smoky Lake County acknowledge receipt of the correspondence 

received from the Executive Assistant of Legislative Services, Beaver 
County, dated January 2, 2025, calling for RMA District 5 Agenda items 
to add to the January 24, 2025, Meeting; and respond to ensure the 
following subjects are on the agenda: 

 the decline of rural volunteers for community halls, 
 rural crime reduction, 
 rural healthcare, 
 Local Government Fiscal Framework (LGFF) funding, and 
 Oil & Gas Property Tax. 

Carried. 
 
 

 11.    Information Releases: 
 

Information Releases to Council – November to December 2024 
235-25: Gawalko That Smoky Lake County “Information Releases” sent to Council for 

the period of September – November 2024, listed as follows, be filed for 
information: 

 
 

Carried. 
 
 



County Council Meeting          15838 
January 9, 2025 

 

 12.   Financial Reports: 
 

 
 Nil. 

 
 

 13.  Next Meeting(s): 
 

Schedule the County Council Meeting Dates 
236-25: Halisky That the next Smoky Lake County Council Meetings be reconfirmed as 

follows: 
Thursday, January 23, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, February 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, February 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 
Thursday, March 13, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), and 
Thursday, March 27, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. (Regular), 

to be held physically and/or virtually in County Council Chambers.  
 

Carried. 
 

Schedule a County Council Committee of the Whole Retreat for Strategic Planning 
237-25: Halisky That a Smoky Lake County Council Committee of the Whole Retreat 

for the purpose of Strategic Planning be scheduled for Thursday, January 
30 and Friday January 31, 2025, to be held at Smoky Lake Agricultural 
Society’s Complex, upstairs, if available. 

Carried. 
 

 14. In-Camera (Executive Session): 
 
 No In-Camrea. 

 
Meeting Recessed  Meeting recessed for Lunch, time 10:39 a.m.   

 
 

 
 

H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Class of 22 students, entered Council 
Chambers, time 11:21 a.m.  
 
 

Meeting Reconvened  The meeting reconvened on a call to order by the Deputy Reeve at 11:30 
a.m. in the physical (or virtual) presence of all Council Members, Chief 
Administrative Officer, Finance Manager, Executive Services Clerk, 
Natural Gas Manager, Health & Safety Coordinator, GIS Operator, 
Assistant Ag. Fieldman, and 4 Members of the Public, and 3 
Delegations. 
 
 

11:31 to 12:16 a.m. 
 

  Public Question and Answer Period: 
 
The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 

 why the County doesn’t have a cat bylaw?  
The County Reeve responded: 

 we haven’t felt the need to create one – we create bylaws based 
on data and needs and we haven’t had people asking for one, but 
now that you’ve brought it up we can.  

 
The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 

 why is Jered the Reeve? 
The County Reeve responded: 

 to make a difference; I’ve lived here all my life and want to 
contribute to my community, I was nominated and elected as 
Reeve. 

 



County Council Meeting          15839 
January 9, 2025 

 

The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 
 How big is the County? 

The County Reeve responded: 
 Just over 2,500 people and covers almost 3,400 square 

kilometers. 
 

The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 
 What is the most recent bylaw passed? 

The County Reeve responded: 
 Bylaw No. 1471-25: Fire Protection Services. 

 
The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 

 Do we always have fire services 24/7?  
The County responded: 

 We have 2 working full time and all others are volunteer. 
 

The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 
 What was the last bylaw defeated? 

The County responded: 
 Not sure, there had not been one recently, we would have to look 

further into our records. 
 

The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 
 How long will it take for fire services to come out to the 

countryside?  
The County responded: 

 7 minutes before the fire truck leaves the fire hall – so anywhere 
from 10 -30 minutes to get to sight. 
 

The H.A. Kostash School’s Grade 6 Students questioned: 
 How long does it take to pass a bylaw? 

The County responded: 
 It varies.  

 
To help the students understand the County invited them all to switch 
spots with Council and sit in the Councillors chairs and conduct a 
meeting to debate a hypothetical proposed cat bylaw. 
 
 

 15.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

238-25: Gawalko That the Smoky Lake County Council Meeting of January 9, 2025, be 
adjourned, 12:18 p.m. 

Carried. 
 

 ________________________________ 
   REEVE 

  
 S E A L 

  ________________________________ 
 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.1















Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 SMOKY LAKE COUNTY  
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

BYLAW NO. 1464-24 
 

BEING A BYLAW OF SMOKY LAKE COUNTY IN THE PROVINCE OF 
ALBERTA FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A MUNICIPAL 
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT OR EXPANSIONS. 

************************************************************ 

WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000 and amendments thereto, 
a municipality may offer multi-year tax exemptions, partial exemptions, or deferrals, 
in accordance with section 364.2 of the Municipal Government Act, for non-
residential development and machinery and equipment;  
 
AND WHEREAS Smoky Lake County seeks to provide an incentive to grow its 
property tax base and provide increased employment opportunities for County 
residents by attracting investment. The intent of this Bylaw is to provide a municipal 
tax incentive to attract commercial and industrial investors and promote expansion 
by existing investors through providing an exemption to a portion of municipal 
property taxes attributable to the differential between the pre-construction assessment 
and the post-construction assessment for eligible property;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of Smoky Lake County in the Province of 
Alberta, duly assembled hereby enacts as follows:  
 
1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS BYLAW IS TO:  

1.1 Encourage the development or revitalization of non-residential properties 
and machinery and equipment in Smoky Lake County for the general benefit 
of the municipality; 

1.2 Establish a tax exemption for eligible property in accordance with section 
364.2 of the Municipal Government Act when there is a new development or 
a renovated development that meets the criteria and requirements set out in 
this bylaw; 

1.3 Provide a process for an application for tax exemption under this bylaw; and 
1.4 Provide a process for Council to review the refusal or cancellation of a tax 

exemption under this bylaw. 
1.5 The Bylaw is cited as the “Non-Residential Development Municipal Tax 

Incentive Bylaw” 
 

2. DEFINITIONS 
When used in this Bylaw: 

2.1   “Act” means Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, M-26, as amended 
or repealed and replaced for time to time;  

2.2  “Affiliated Party” means a party that directly or indirectly, through one 
or more persons, corporations, or partnerships, controls, is controlled by, 
or is under common control with an assessed person; 

2.3 “Appeal Fee” means the fee established by this bylaw to be paid at the 
time an appeal application is submitted pursuant to this bylaw 

2.4 “Application Fee” means the fee established by this bylaw to be paid at 
the time an application is submitted pursuant to this bylaw; 

2.5 “Arrear taxes” shall mean taxes remaining unpaid after December 31 of 
the year in which they are levied; 

2.6 “Assessed Person” means an assessed person as defined under section 
284(1) of the Act, or an authorized agent for assessed person; 

2.7 “Assessment” means a value of property as defined under section 284(1) 
of the act; 

2.8 “Base Assessment Year" means the assessment year immediately prior to 
the assessment year that has an increase in improvement assessment as a 
result of new development or renovated development, not be prior to the 
2024 assessment year; 

2.9 “Chief Administration Officer” (CAO) means the Chief Administrative 
Officer of the County, or delegate; 



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 2 of 7 
 

2.10 “Complete Application” means an application submitted pursuant to this 
bylaw that includes the application fee, the application form, any 
information and documents set out on the application and any additional 
application requirements for the tax incentives under this bylaw; 

2.11 “County” shall mean the municipal corporation of Smoky Lake County;  
2.12 “Council” means all of the councilors of the County, including the chief 

elected official for the County; 
2.13 “Current taxes” means the property taxes levied for the current tax year; 
2.14 “Decision” means the decision to grant an exemption, to reject an 

exemption application, or to cancel an exemption; 
2.15 “Eligible Property” means property within Assessment Class 2 – Non-

residential and Assessment Class 4 – Machinery and Equipment as 
defined in the Act that meet the criteria set out in section 3 of this bylaw. 
This bylaw shall specifically exclude Linear Property from Eligible 
Property; 

2.16 “Exemption” means the portion of municipal property taxes for eligible 
property that has been determined to be exempt and subject to refund, in 
accordance with this bylaw, and which are computed separately under 
this bylaw; 

2.17 “Improvement(s)” has the meaning given to it in section 284(1) of the 
Act; 

2.18 “Improvement Assessment Change” means the change in an Assessment 
attributed solely to an improvement or improvements on a property; 

2.19 “Improvement Assessment” refers to the portion of the assessment 
attributed to all improvements on the property. 

2.20 “Land Assessment” refers to the portion of assessment attributed to the 
value of land. 

2.21 “Linear Property” has the meaning given to it in section 284(1) of the 
Act; 

2.22 “Non-residential” means the type of property falling within the 
assessment class specified in section 297(1)(b) of the Act. This bylaw 
shall specifically exclude the land assessment and linear property as 
defined in the Act; 

2.23 “Machinery and Equipment” (M&E) has the meaning given to it in 
section 297(1)(d) of the Act and associated regulation(s) i.e. (Matters 
Relating to Assessment Regulation, as amended from time to time); 

2.24 “New Development” shall mean new improvements on an eligible 
property that results in an increased improvement assessment of that 
Property;  

2.25 “Renovated Development” means renovations or physical additions to 
existing improvements on an eligible property that results in an increase 
to the improvement assessment of that property; 

2.26 “Tax Incentive Agreement” means a written agreement between the 
county and the Assessed Person setting out the terms and conditions 
applicable to the eligible property for exemption of municipal property 
tax and shall be the result of the calculation reference in section 6 of this 
bylaw; and  

2.27 “Working day” shall mean days the County’s central administration 
building is open to serve the public 
 

3. CRITERIA FOR TAX INCETIVE AGREEMENT  
3.1. New Developments and Renovated Developments may be eligible for an 

exemption and Tax Incentive Agreement provided that: 
3.1.1 The property subject to the New Development or Renovated 

Development must not have any arrear taxes or have amounts 
owing with regards to property tax, utilities, or other fees owing 
to the County.  Current taxes must be paid in full.  

3.1.2 The property subject to the New Development or Renovated 
Development must not have development compliance issues, be 
in violation of a development agreement, or be in violation of the 
Safety Codes Act at any time during the taxation years for which 
the exemption applies to the new development or renovated 
development; 



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 3 of 7 
 

3.1.3 All applicable provincial or federal approvals and permits must 
be in place with respect to the property subject to the New 
Development or renovated development;   

3.1.4 The registered property owner or the Assessed Person, excluding 
any authorized agent, of the property to the New Development or 
Renovated Development is not involved in some form of 
litigation (including an Assessment Review Board Complaint) 
with the County; and  

3.1.5 The current Improvement Assessment for the New Development 
or Renovated Development on the subject property must have 
increased by at least $20,000 compared to the Base Assessment 
Year, not prior to the 2024 assessment year. The change in 
valuation for the Assessment of land is excluded from this from 
this calculation.  

3.2. Under this bylaw, the Exemption or Tax Incentive Agreement will not 
apply to: 
3.2.1. Linear Property, or 
3.2.2. the Land Assessment. 

 
4. APPLICATION FOR TAX INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

4.1. The Assessed Person of the property subject to the application must 
submit a Complete Application to the County, and the County has the 
discretion to reject applications that are incomplete, or ineligible.  

4.2. As part of a Complete Application, the Assessed Person must agree to 
enter into Tax Incentive Agreement with the County, on the form 
prescribed by the County, if their application is approved for an 
Exemption.  

4.3. Assessed Persons must submit a non-refundable application fee of $500 
(five hundred Canadian dollars) concurrent with Complete Application.  

4.4. Applicants are encouraged to submit a complete application for an 
exemption prior to commencement of construction. 
4.4.1. The final deadline for submission for an application for an 

exemption to be granted in the same tax year is October 31 of that 
tax year.  

4.4.2. Any applications received after October 31 of the given year will 
be considered for an Exemption for the following tax year.  

4.5. Notwithstanding the Complete application requirements, the County may 
require any additional information that, in the discretion of the County, 
is necessary to complete the application.   

4.6. Assessed Persons whose application is returned as incomplete or 
ineligible may resubmit an application without payment of an 
Application Fee. 

4.7. The County will advise an Assessed Person in writing if their application 
is accepted for consideration, refused, or rejected. Applications accepted 
for consideration will become the property of the County and may not be 
returned. 
 

5. CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS  
5.1. The CAO shall receive and consider Complete Applications within the 

provisions of this Bylaw and may consult with, obtain information from, 
and verify information with other employees or agents of the County, 
other governments, government agencies, or persons. 

5.2. The CAO may, at any time, require an Assessed Person to provide any 
documents the County deems necessary to verify any information 
contained in a Complete Application or to confirm ongoing compliance 
with the eligibility criteria of the Exemption. 

5.3. The CAO may take into consideration other agreements including those 
which have the Assessed Person or Affiliated Party and the County as 
parties, or other municipal incentives which may apply to the Assessed 
Person or Affiliated Party. 

5.4. The CAO will consider each Complete Application and shall either: 
5.4.1 Grant the Exemption and enter into a Tax Incentive Agreement 

with the Assessed Person; or  



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 4 of 7 
 

5.4.2 Reject the application and advise the Assessed Person with 
written reasons as why the application was rejected. The written 
reasons shall also provide the date by which an appeal to council 
must be submitted. 

5.5. The County shall enter into a Tax Incentive Agreement with the Assessed 
Person if an Exemption is granted under section 5.4.1 of this Bylaw 

5.6. The Exemption shall not be refunded until the Tax Incentive Agreement 
is fully executed.  

 
6. CALCULATION OF THE EXEMPTION   

6.1. Subject to section 6.2 of this bylaw, the amount of the exemption will be 
calculated as Follows:  
6.1.1 The municipal taxes subject to Exemption shall be in 

accordance with Schedule A – Exemptions Levels & Duration. 
6.1.2 Should the county determine that the installation of municipal 

infrastructure is required to support the New or Renovated 
Development, a reduction of the exemption may apply that equals 
the total costs associated with the installation of municipal 
infrastructure as determined by the county CAO. Should the cost 
associated with the installation of municipal infrastructure exceed 
the exemption amount, the exemption shall not apply and the 
Assessed Person may be responsible to pay for the differential 
between what the exemption amount would be and the costs 
associated with the installation of municipal infrastructure 

6.1.3 Only the municipal portion of property taxes is eligible for 
exemption. 

6.2. No Exemption will be granted respecting any requisitions 
 

7. PAYMENT OF EXEMPTION  
7.1. The Exemption as calculated in accordance with section 6 of this Bylaw 

shall be paid to the Assessed Person as a refund of a portion of the Current 
Taxes of the eligible Property, subject to the Current Taxes for the 
Taxation year first being paid in full. 

7.2. Subject to the terms of the Tax Incentive Agreement: 
7.2.1 The amount of the Exemption shall be paid to the Assessed 

Person each year for the period established in Schedule A – 
Exemptions Levels & Duration 

7.2.2 Payment shall be made to the Assessed Person within thirty (30) 
Working days from the date Current Taxes are paid in full; and 

7.2.3 If the Current Taxes are not paid in full by December 31 of any 
year, then the Exemption shall not be paid to the Assessed Person 
for that year, the Tax Incentive Agreement shall be considered 
cancelled, and the Assessed Person shall not be eligible to receive 
an exemption for any subsequent years. 

 
8. DURARTION OF THE EXEMPTION PROGRAM  

8.1. The Exemption program as authorized by this Bylaw will be available 
for Eligible Property commencing after the 2023 assessment year and 
shall operate in accordance with the terms of this bylaw until such time 
as this bylaw is amended or repealed. 

 
9. TAX INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 

9.1. A Tax Incentive Agreement will be required for all granted Exemptions. 
9.2. The Tax Incentive Agreement will include the following: 

9.1.1 The taxation years to which the Exemption applies, which will 
not include any taxation year earlier than the taxation year in 
which the Exemption is granted; 

9.1.2 Conditions, the breach of which will result in cancellation of the 
Tax Incentive Agreement and the exemption, and the taxation 
year or years to which the condition applies; 

9.1.3 The date which the exemption will begin; 
9.1.4 The exemption percentages, to be calculated and allocated in 

accordance with section 6 of this Bylaw; and  
9.1.5 Any other information or conditions provided by the County. 



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 5 of 7 
 

10. CANCELLATION OF EXEMPTION 
10.1. If at any time after an Exemption is granted, the County determines that: 

10.1.1 The Assessed Person, their application, or the property subject to 
the application did not meet or ceases to meet any of criteria in 
which formed the bias of granting the exemption; or  

10.1.2 There was a breach of any condition of the Tax Incentive 
Agreement; 

The CAO may cancel the exemption for the taxation year or years in 
which the criterion was not met or to which the condition applies 

10.2. The county may, at any time, require an Assessed Person to provide any 
documents the County deems necessary to verify compliance with the 
conditions of the Tax Incentive Agreement 

10.3. A written decision to cancel an exemption must be provided to the 
Applicant and must include reasons for the cancellation, identify the 
taxation year or years to which the cancellation applies, and provide the 
date by which an application for an appeal to council must be made. 
 

11. APPEAL TO COUNCIL 
11.1. An Assessed Person may appeal to Council in the following situations: 

11.1.1 An application for Exemption is refused or rejected; 
11.1.2 An Exemption is cancelled for one or more taxation years; 
11.1.3 A Tax Incentive Agreement is cancelled; or 
11.1.4 The content of the Tax Incentive Agreement is inconsistent with 

this Bylaw or the Act  
11.2. A request for appeal must be submitted in writing to the CAO within 30 

days of: 
11.2.1 Written notice being sent to the Assessed Person that an 

application has been refused or rejected; 
11.2.2 Written notice being sent to the Assessed Person that an 

Exemption is cancelled for one or more taxation years; 
11.2.3 A Tax Incentive Agreement being cancelled; or  
11.2.4 The execution of a Tax Incentive Agreement as the case may be. 

11.3. An Assessed Person must submit a non-refundable appeal fee of $500 
(Canadian dollars) concurrent with the appeal  

11.4. Council will consider an appeal at:  
11.4.1 A regularly scheduled meeting of council; or  
11.4.2 A special meeting of Council  

11.5. Remedies available to Council upon conclusion of an appeal are: 
11.5.1 Council may uphold or revoke a decision of the CAO with respect 

to the outcome of an application or cancellation of an Exemption 
or Tax Incentive Agreement; or  

11.5.2 Council can revise or direct the CAO to revise a Tax Incentive 
Agreement. 

11.6. In accordance with section 460(7) of the Act, complaints about Decision 
may not be made to the Assessment review board 

 
12. SEVERABLITY  

12.1. Should any provision of the Bylaw be declared to be invalid, then such 
invalid provision shall be severed, and the remaining Bylaw shall be 
maintained. 

This bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and Final Reading. 
READ a First Time this 8th day of August, 2024. 
READ a Second Time this 14th day of November, 2024. 
READ a Third and Final Time this 23rd day of January, 2025 and finally passed by 
Council. 
 
  __________________________________ 
  Jered Serben, Reeve 
   

     S E A L 
  __________________________________ 
  Kevin Lucas, Chief Administrative Officer 
 



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 6 of 7 
 

SCHEDULE A – Municipal Tax Exemption Levels & Duration 

 New or Increase Assessment 
Assessment 
Increase 

$20,000-
$500,000 

$500,001- 
$1,000,000 

$1,000,001- 
$5,000,000 

Greater 
than 
$5,000,000  

Year 1 100% 100% 100% 100% 
Year 2 50% 50% 50% 75% 
Year 3     
Year 4     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Bylaw No. 1464-24 

Page 7 of 7 
 

SCHEDULE B – Non-Residential Tax Incentive Application 
Pursuant to Bylaw No. 1464-24: Non-Residential Development 

Municipal Tax Incentive Bylaw 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
 Applicant Name  
 Registered Corporate 
Name, if different 

 

 Mailing Address of 
Applicant 

 

 Corporate Registry 
Office Address of 
Applicant: 

 

 

 
 3.     DESCRIBE BUSINESS ACTIVITY: 

 
4. PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

 Assessed Person  
 Legal Description of 
Assessed Property: 

 

 Property Tax Roll #   
 
 5.  THE FOLLOWING MUST BE ATTACHED TO THE APPLICATION: 

o Corporate Registry record 
o Land Titles Certificate 
o Payment of application fee 

 
6.    I/We the undersigned acknowledge 

o that this application and any attached material provided with the 
application, will become the property of the County, and may not be 
returned, 

o that information in this application may be included in reports that are 
available to the public, 

o that I/we understand the conditions of eligibility and further terms set out 
in bylaw 1464-24(Non-Residential Tax Incentive Bylaw), and 

o that I/we have authority to request taxation exemption on the above-
mentioned property 

 

_______________________________ ______________________________ 
Print Name and Position   Signature  
 

_______________________________ ______________________________ 
Print Name and Position   Signature  

2. AGENT FOR APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
 Name of Authorized 
Agent: 

 

 Mailing Address:  
 Email Address:  
 Phone Number:  



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.2





patti
Typewritten Text





patti
Typewritten Text
#7.3















patti
Typewritten Text
#7.4













patti
Typewritten Text
#7.5











patti
Typewritten Text
#7.6



















patti
Typewritten Text
#7.7







patti
Typewritten Text
#7.8













patti
Typewritten Text
#7.9

















patti
Typewritten Text
#7.10



















patti
Typewritten Text
#7.11





patti
Typewritten Text
#7.12





patti
Typewritten Text
#7.13



patti
Typewritten Text
#7.14



patti
Typewritten Text





1 | P a g e  
 

 Policy M-01-30-01:  Monthly Departmental Reporting 
 

Chief Administrative Officer -    Report Period: December 6, 2024 - January 16, 2025  
 

LEGISLATIVE / GOVERNANCE  
Projects In Progress Completed 

Managers meetings  Ongoing  

Smoky Lake Region Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee (ICC) 
Meeting 

 X 

Highway 28/63 Regional Water Services Commission Regular Meeting  X 
Smoky Lake Regional Fire & Rescue Committee Meeting X  
Regular Council Meeting X  
Smoky Lake County Policing Study: Stakeholder Interview  X 
Tree removal meeting, future gravel pits  X 
Joint Municipalities Meeting  X 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
Projects In Progress Completed 

Agricultural Service Board Meeting  X 

Smoky Lake Bridge Maintenance, Weekly Progress Meeting X  
Joint Health & Safety Committee Meeting  X 
Regional Emergency Plan ICS Positions Meeting  X 
Smoky Lake Tourism Company Board Meeting  X 
Regional Recreation Study X  
   
   
   

FINANCIAL 
Projects In Progress Completed 

Both union agreements ratified   X 
Interim 2025 operational budget   X 
   

HUMAN RESOURCES 
Projects In Progress Completed 

Continued onboarding and policy updates for CPO position X  
Working on Organizational chart, organizational efficiencies  X  
Updates to organization job descriptions X  

COMMUNITY 
Projects In Progress Completed 

County Christmas Party  X 
Meeting with Community member   X 

TRAINING / MEETINGS 
Joint Health & Safety Committee Member Training  X 
Office ergonomics  X 
ACTION LIST 
Working on CAO goals 1-8 from Council          
Signature: 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

County Council Meeting:     
Jan 23, 2025 

 

patti
Typewritten Text
#8.1



 STRATEGIC PLAN 2023-2025 
(Revision #1, Apr. 27, 2023, Motion #565-23) 

Priorities Progress Update as of December 31st 2024 

   Page 1 of 3 

 

1. Grow Employment Opportunities - Council is committed to lobby for the re-instatement of healthcare services 
in the region, the re-opening of the courthouse, and supporting growth in all industries, including agricultural 
business and producers to stimulate population growth in the region. To attain this priority, Council recognizes the 
following tasks will be required to be undertaken: 
1.1. Lobby efforts to the Provincial and/or Federal Governments  

Ongoing, lobbying is taking place through the “Northeast Alberta Alliance for Growth and 
Opportunities (NAAGO)” formed in 2023 comprised of 40 member municipalities and Indigenous 
communities that are working together to identify common issues and advocate for investment into 
our region, representing more than 137,000 residents. 

1.2. Collaboration with Municipalities and Healthcare Providers  
January 2024, implemented a letter writing campaign implemented through the Physicians & Health 
Care Professionals Committee involving members of the public, community stakeholders, 
businesses, Smoky Lake Region Municipalities, Settlements, Reserves, and anyone, to urge the 
Provincial Government and Regional Health Authority in taking action to remove the red tape 
hindering the attraction and retention of physicians affecting the George McDougall Health Care 
Centre’s Emergency Room Services and Medical Clinics in the Smoky Lake Region. 
February 2024, letters were written from the NAAGO to 22 Ministers and the Premier bringing 
attention to concerns regarding prolonged health care challenges including recruitment and retention 
of doctors and nurses and enhancing our EMS. 

1.3. Examine recreation opportunities and new facilities 
In 2023 & 2024, partnered with the Town of Smoky Lake & Villages of Vilna & Waskatenau to conduct 
a Smoky Lake Regional Recreation Services Strategy funded through an Alberta Community 
Partnership (ACP) 2023-24 grant. Public feedback is expected to be engaged in early 2025 and the 
final report is expected to be received in December 2026. 
In 2024, partnered with Village of Waskatenau for grant funding to complete the Waskatenau Creek 
Corridor Restoration and Trail Concept study. 

1.4. Examine Incentive Initiatives 
In 2024 Gave 1ST & 2ND Reading to Bylaw No. 1464-24: Non-Residential Development Municipal Tax 
Incentive, for the purpose of providing a Municipal Property Tax Exemption for Non-Residential 
Development or Expansions (3rd reading will be considered in January 2025). 
 

2. Proactivity in Development – Council is committed to the development of policy and programming to foster a 
proactive approach to land development within our region: 
2.1. Sell land to raise revenues for development initiatives 

In 2023: 
  Sold River Lot 10 for $80,000 
  Sold Plan 716CL, Block 1, Lot 9, in Warspite for $9,000 
  In 2024: 

Sold PT. SE-09-58-15-4W (20.04 acres) for $50,000.00 
Sold NE 23-60-13-W4M (136.30 acres) through CLHBid.com for $210,655.30 profit 
Sold SW 34-61-13-W4M (127.60 acres) through CLHBid.com for $266,148.55 profit 
Sold NE 32-59-14-W4M (160.0 acres) through CLHBid.com for $224,394.64 profit 
Sold PT. NW-2-59-12-W4M (13.57 acres) for $4,500 
Sold PT. SW-21-60-13-W4M (1 acre) for $1,000 
Sold PT. SW-35-59-15-W4M (0.5 acre) for $500 
Sold PLAN 8120163, LOT 1 (20.16 acres) for $40,000 
Sold PLAN 1955CL, BLOCK 1, LOT 3 (3,900 sq ft) for $1,600 
Sold PLAN 1039CL, BLOCK 4, LOTS 12-14 (13,660 sq ft) for $1,800 
Sold PLAN 1039CL, BLOCK 4, LOTS 15-16 (12,785 sq ft) for $1,200 
Sold PLAN 0425044, BLOCK H, LOT 11A (10,000 sq ft) for $5,000 

patti
Typewritten Text
#8.2



 STRATEGIC PLAN 2023-2025 
(Revision #1, Apr. 27, 2023, Motion #565-23) 

Priorities Progress Update as of December 31st 2024 

   Page 2 of 3 

 

2.2. Review existing policy framework 
August 2023, Policy Statement No. 61-08-01: Regional Engineering Design Standards (REDS), was 
adopted to establish a minimum acceptable regional design standards and criteria for the preparation 
and submission of plans and specifications for the orderly and satisfactory development of 
subdivisions and other municipal services within the County. 
April 2024, Policy Statement No. 61-03-07: Application for Development Permit, was amended to 
align with other County policies and bylaws. 
April 2024, Policy Statement No. 61-02-03: Resource Extraction Development Permit Application, 
was rescinded because it was made redundant by updating Policy Statement No. 61-03-07. 

2.3. Market Evaluation 
September 2024, the Investment Attraction Strategy, was completed as a project funded through 
the Rural Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) Microgrant program, to identify growth opportunities. 
Also, there is market data available through the Alberta HUB website:  
https://albertahub.com/smoky-lake-county/  

2.4. Lobby efforts to the Provincial and/or Federal Governments 
No opportunities have been available.  

2.5. Proactive Preliminary Planning 
April 2024, Bylaw No. 1453-23 was passed, to redistrict River Lot 15, Victoria Settlement, to Direct 
Control (DC2) District and to add provisions relating to Supportive Living Facilities. 
October 204, Council approve to issue Development Permit DP 024-24, for a Supportive Living 
Facility, on River Lot 15, Victoria Settlement, subject to conditions. 

2.6. Effective Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
December 12, 2024, Policy Statement No. 01-45-02: Geographic Information Systems (GIS), was 
amended to clearly outline responsibilities to ensure the GIS database is updated regularly and 
ensure accurate data is provided to stakeholders.   

2.7. Housing Diversity 
February 2023, Needs & Demand Assessment for the Region of Smoky Lake: prepared by The 
Sustainable Housing Initiative at the Rural Development Network, through ACP Grant Funding with 
Vilna as the managing partner of the project. 
August 9, 2023, ICC Meeting Motion ICC11-23: Established an ad-hoc working group committee 
for “Housing Opportunities and Initiatives”. 
January 16, 2024, aimed to review each respective municipality’s Strategic Plan and Land Use 
Bylaw’s permitted use, to regionally align the reduction of red tape to aim to be development ready 
and developer ready and attract housing investment to the region. 

2.8. Agriculture 
December 2024, 1st Reading was given to Bylaw 1467-24, to amend Land Use Bylaw to Redistrict 
Plan 9121735, Lot A, Pt. NE-33-58-18-W4M from AG to M2 and Amend Municipal Development Plan 
Bylaw 1249-12 to Reclassify Plan 9121735, Lot A, Pt. NE-33-58-18-W4M from Agriculture Area to 
Industrial Area. 

2.9. Environment 
June 2023 passed Bylaw No. 1436-23: Major Alternative Energy, and Lake, Watershed, and 
Regional Planning Bylaw, Amending Land Use Bylaw No. 1272-14 and Municipal Development Plan 
Bylaw No. 1249-12, to address provisions for dealing with major alternative energy developments. 
2024, the Waskatenau Creek Corridor Restoration and Trail Concept study was completed and will 
be utilized should funding become available for development. 
 
Rural investment attract strategy 
 

3. Emergency Services – Council is committed to ensure that all County residents have access to full-service Police, 
Fire and EMS services: 



 STRATEGIC PLAN 2023-2025 
(Revision #1, Apr. 27, 2023, Motion #565-23) 

Priorities Progress Update as of December 31st 2024 

   Page 3 of 3 

 

3.1. Lobby efforts to the Provincial and/or Federal Governments 
November 2023, Met with RCMP K-Division, Deputy Commissioner Curtis Zablocki to discuss: 
Enhancing Service Delivery, Crime Reduction, & Enhancing Engagement and Communication with 
Communities and Stakeholders. Met with Mike Ellis, Deputy Premier & Minister of Public Safety and 
Emergency Services to discuss Regional Emergency Services and Volunteer Firefighters. 
January 2024, applied to the Alberta Indigenous & Municipal Policing Transition Grant Program, to 
fund a project titled: Smoky Lake County Crime Strategy Study. 
January 2024, RMA District 5 Meeting: brought forward a resolution for the Rural Municipalities of 
Alberta (RMA) to advocate to the Government of Alberta to collaborate with the Federal Government 
and Fire Underwriters Survey for the purpose of assisting municipalities to retain fire services by 
recruiting firefighters and addressing the declining Fire Department Services across Rural Alberta.  
November 2024, met with the Deputy Premier / Minister of Public Safety & Emergency Services to 
discuss the need for funding towards community safety, and increased policing to mitigation rural 
armed / violent property crimes in Smoky Lake County. Met with the Minister of Justice to discuss 
repeated offenders and lack of consequences for charges laid – catch and release, and the need for 
a plan to achieve safe, crime free communities. 

3.2. Explore the possibility of Partnership/Investment Opportunities 
The County’s Community Peace Officer works closely with the Smoky Lake RCMP Detachment 
Member to assist where possible. 
 

4. Education - Council is committed to ensuring that educational opportunities for County residents continue to grow: 
4.1. Create and enhance Partnerships 

Aspen View Public School Division and Lakeland Roman Catholic Separate School Division are 
invited to attend Joint Municipalities Meetings as delegations to provide updates. 
The County continues to participates in employing high school students through Alberta’s Registered 
Apprenticeship Program. 

4.2. Lobby efforts to the Provincial and/or Federal Governments 
No opportunities have been available:  

4.3. Explore the possibility of Partnership/Investment Opportunities 
January 2024, invited Portage College President & CEO, and Associate Dean of Economic 
Development & Sustainability, to the Joint Municipalities Meeting to provide an update open the door 
to and explore opportunities.  
 

5. Cultural Diversity – Council is committed to ensuring that the County is recognized as being a Culturally Diverse 
Community: 
5.1. Apply to Provincial Government to become a Designated Community  

September 9, 2024, Smoky Lake Region was approved for participation in the Rural Renewal 
Stream (RRS) which empowers rural communities to recruit and retain foreign nationals to live, work 
and settle in their communities. This approval includes Smoky Lake County, Town of Smoky Lake, 
Village of Waskatenau, Village of Vilna. The Smoky Lake Region is now officially a Designated 
Community for this. 

5.2. Create Policy Statements 
January 26, 2023, Policy Statement No, 07-09-01: Alberta Bilingual Municipalities Association 
(ABMA) – Liaison Committee Terms of Reference, was adopted to allow for representation to the  
March 16, 2023, Policy Statement No. 01-35-02: Flag Protocol & Half Mast, was amended to include 
Ukrainian Flag and Treaty 6 Flag.  
December 14, 2023, Policy Statement No. 01-53-02: Treaty 6 and Indigenous Acknowledgement, 
was amended with updates and added definitions. 



Councillor’s Report 
 

For November 14, 2024 to January 16, 2025 
From Councillor Lorne Halisky, Division 4. 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

November 18, 2024 – Ukrainian Twinning Kosiv & Smoky Lake Region Meeting and Ukrainian Twinning 
Organizational Meeting (in-person) 

 Appointment of Chair (Lorne Halisky) and Vice Chair (Marianne Prockiw-Zarusky). 
 Discussion was held on the Kosiv District/Smoky Lake Region Ukrainian Twinning MOU 

Memorandum of Understanding expiry on January 27, 2025 and to recommend on bringing it to 
the next JMM for discussion and direction.  

 Education project is still in the works with creating virtual Pen Pals through Kosiv student videos 
sharing culture, heritage etc. 

 Discussion on creating a website page with educational videos, presentations etc. to promote 
school projects and continue to work with SL Region Schools on educational projects. 

 Financial report was giving with all in good standing and no budget is required for 2025 as was for 
2024 with a current balance of $3,347.42. 

 
November 26 & 27, 2024 – Federation of Alberta Gas Coops Conference (in-person)  

 Attended Trade Fair to educate myself on new technologies, opportunities etc.  
 Attended Gas Alberta Inc. Annual General Meeting who gave a presentation on the 

organization with employee introductions, future gas pricing to continue to be on par or 
better then competitors, always looking into new business opportunities that align with 
the organizations vision, and financial status is in good standing. 

 Keynote Address from General Mark Milley was on Leadership focusing on commitment, 
interpersonal relationships, competence/grounding, communication skills, and 
character/integrity. 

 Aon insurance coverage rates increase of 4% and claims were down. 
 Mental Health Cases is presently the leading cause of diability claims in Canada. 
 Metrix Group LLP presented the Financial Auditors Report with all good standing and 

reappointing Metrix Group LLP as Fianacial Auditor for 2024/2025.  
 Levy Motion for $13.60 per/riser was made. 
 Reolutions that were presented: Urban Funding Program Resolution(passed), Grain Dryer 

Upgrade Grant Support Resolution(passed), New Director Training for Membership 
Resolution(passed), Mandate all Members of Fed Gas Coops to achieve and maintain COR - 
Certificate of Recognition or SECOR - Small Employer Certificate of Recognition safety 
certification Resolution(failed), Continuation of Rural Gas Grant Program Resolution(passed), 
Rural Gas Grant Expansion Resolution(passed), Francise Protection Resolution(passed), Removal 
of Natural Gas Carbon Levy Surcharge Resolution(passed), Federal Fuel Charge 
Resolution(passed), Correspondence from the Federation Resolution(passed), Energy Use to 
Qualify for Francise Area Exemption Resolution(passed), and Offences under the Gas 
Distribution Act Resolution(passed).     

 
 
 
 
 
 

patti
Typewritten Text
#9.4



Councillor’s Report 
 

For November 14, 2024 to January 16, 2025 
From Councillor Lorne Halisky, Division 4. 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

November 28, 2024 – Highway 28/63 Regional Water Services Commission and Whitefish Lake #128 
Meeting (in-person)  

 The main purpose for this meeting was for the Commission Manager, Commission 
Finance Manager, Commission Chair, and Associated Engineering Representative to 
have meet & greet with WFL Council. 

 Discussion on WFL becoming a Commission Member, the status of that process and 
what needs to get done to continue to complete this matter was held with all agreeing 
on the actions etc. required. 

 A gift exchange and sharing of historical experiences/data was shared.  
 A Safety Moment on Extreme Cold Weather was shared with discussion on preparation, 

awareness, communication etc. 
 Reservoir Project Status was discussed with construction completed, station operation, 

ownership of building/reservoir/land, utilities, disposition, agreements, future projects 
etc.  

 WFL looks forward to partnership on current and future assignments.  
 Other opportunties were discussed such as RR130 and Twp620 support etc, Education, Fire & 

Rescue, Health Services, Waste, Policing etc. 
 A WFL Project Ribbon Cutting Ceremony at the Reservior was discussed and hopefully will take 

place in 2025.  
 Commission and WFL shared the perspective of a proud partnership which should be celebrated 

with sharing the completion on delivery of safe drinking water etc. 

December 02, 2024 – MCC Meeting (in-person)  
 Discussion was held on the dissolution of the MCC and SLTC which included gathering 

MCC expenses such as recruiter, lawyer, insurance etc. to be paid.  
 Not to hire a CEO. 
 Discussed Lawyer required steps for dissolution.  
 Extending the shareholder payment date from December 31, 2024 to March 31, 2025 to 

hopefully have all dissolution actions completed with one final payment etc. 

December 09, 2024 – Highway 28/63 Regional Water Services Commission Regular Meeting (Dan and 
Lorne in-person)  

 Commission Manager discussed November 28th meeting with Whitefish Lake #128 
Council and holding a successful meeting discussing Whitefish Lake Member Agreement 
progress etc., Water for Life Grant SCADA design work progress with a two package 
process, Thorhild customer West Water Connection completed/ in operation, Warspite 
Generator Project progress with RFP process, Water Commission Management RFP 
progress/ Smoky Lake County continuing to manage the Commission, Warspite Booster 
Station pump failure caused by debris found in pumps/ will be installing screen system 
on all pumps, and Commission Bylaw review process. 

 2025 budget and Five – Year Budget 2025-2029 was presented and approved. 
 Financials all in good standing. 
 Member Municipalties appointments to the Board was presented and acknowledged.  



Councillor’s Report 
 

For November 14, 2024 to January 16, 2025 
From Councillor Lorne Halisky, Division 4. 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

December 11, 2024 – Smoky Lake Region Fire and Rescue Committee Meeting (Linda and Lorne in-
person)  

 Discussion was held on the Occupational Health & Safety Contact Report with finishing 
the required items. 

 Draft Policies on Firefighter Respiratory Protection Program and Volunteer Firefighter 
Compensation was discussed and will be brought to member councils for consideration, 
approval etc. 

 Thank You Letters and Certificates to Employers who employ Firefighters was discussed 
and will be actioned. 

 Emergency Access to Willow Creek Manor was discussed and will be actioned by the 
property owner and required emergency service. 

 Progress on the TSI Report and with ICC Fire Committee was discussed. 

December 18, 2024 – LICA Board of Directors Meeting (Dan and Lorne in-person)  
 Executive Director, Manager of Environmental Monitoring Programs, Environmental 

Coordinator, Education and Outreach Coordinator, and Community Outreach 
Coordinator gave updates on current projects etc. 

 Soil/Air Quality Testing projects was discussed. 
 Evasive Species Testing in Garner Lake and Whitefish Lake will be taking place. 
 Youth Calendar Contest, Field Days on Winter Watershed, Riparian Areas Survey, Stream 

of Dreams Program and Writing Contest on Electrical Energy are all taking place in 2025. 
 Applying for $50k LFIF – Local Food Infrastructure Funding. 
 Governance Committee reviewed and amended Committee Terms of Reference, Board 

Member Job Descriptions Policy, Management of LICA Revenues Policy, Bylaws, and 
Social Media Management Policy. 

 Financial Report was in good standing. 

January 10, 2025 – SLTC Smoky Lake Tourism Company LTD. Board of Directors Meeting (Linda and Lorne 
virtually)  

 Discussion and Motion passed to begin the process to dissolve the SLTC. 
 Discussion and Motion passed on Appointment of Procido LLP as Legal Council for 

dissolution matter. 
 Discussion and Motion passed to pay the outstanding invoices and supply spreadsheet 

with information prior to finalizing/ making payment. 
 Discussion and Motion passed to not proceed with hiring the CEO due to the dissolution 

of SLTC.  
 Discussed public notification on and when the dissolution is completed. 
 Discussion and Motion passed to hold the next meeting on the dissolution progress on 

February 5, 2025 keeping in mind the March 31, 2025 proposed completion date. 

 

 



Councillor’s Report 
 

For November 14, 2024 to January 16, 2025 
From Councillor Lorne Halisky, Division 4. 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

January 16, 2025 – ALDMO - Alberta’s Lakeland Destination Marketing Organization Board Meeting 
(virtually)  

 Project Manager Reported that Asset Inventory details and new entries continue to be 
updated. Focussed onlat/long for mapping. Asset Inventory potential new experiences 
identified and in review. NRED grant submitted, CIP grant submitted. NRED is 
Destination Development Plan – how to create sustainable visitor economy in Lakeland. 
CIP–Travel Lakeland Strategy and program expansions including policies and procedure 
development and software/hardware to support program delivery. Open Farm Day 
strategy continues to develop – Water is the 2025 theme. Lakeland team engaging with 
roles and responsibilities to get farms interested and support a good turnout. E-bike 
outline initiated, first draft new bylaws for renamed entity. Following up with 
PrairiesCan on grant application and other funding. Working on final version of bylaws. 
E-bike network development. Operator Benefits package – resource library, event 
calendar, Super Host, Facebook group page, ATIS listing process, DMO membership, TA 
learning, PUN, CF DSS, and Ambassador Program. 

 Financial reported that all is within budget and good standing including approving the 
2025 budget. 

 Discussed the 2025/2026 Travel Alberta Funding Proposal of $250,000 for Travel 
Lakeland operations. 

 Discussed the NE Muni-Corr Ltd. Contract using Management Services for ALDMO, 
asked for a justification letter for fees etc. 

 Social Media reported that since the website was set up the user traffic grew 
substantially with female and male users on par since the IHT web page was added. User 
method was primarily through Facebook and majority were from Edmonton, Calgary 
and Red Deer and outside Alberta Vancouver and Toronto. 

 Working on final stages of designing the 2025 Travel Lakeland Activity Guide to have 
before the Tradeshows start in Q1/25. 

 Working on Kalyna Country Ecomuseum MOU joining the ALDMO. 
 

 

 

 

*Please contact myself if you would like to discuss any of these items in further detail.  

Thank you,  

Lorne 



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 
November 8, 2024, to January 16, 2025 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

November 8, 2024 – Smoky Lake Regional Fire & Rescue Committee, held at the Smoky Lake Curling Club 
(All Council) 

 Lorne Halisky was acclaimed as Chairperson & Linda Fenerty was acclaimed a Vice-Chairperson. 
 Representatives from Transitional Solutions Inc. (TSI), presented the Smoky Lake Regional Fire & 

Rescue Services Fire Master Plan, to continue on the path towards fire service regionalization.  
 
November 8, 2024 – HAK School Remembrance Day Ceremony (Jered) 

 Participated in the Remembrance Day Ceremony and addressed the students and those present 
to emphasise the importance of pausing to reflect on the lives lost and encouraged learning 
about: the sacrifices made by those who fought, the nurses and doctors in field hospitals, and the 
young women and men that worked in the factories constructing everything from planes, ships 
and artillery to clothing and bedding for those frontline soldiers. 

 Paused to think about the soldiers who bravely faced danger and hardship; and reflected on the 
young people who showed incredible courage and selflessness, and how much we owe them our 
deep gratitude. 

 Encouraged the students to show gratitude by simply being kind and respectful to everyone and 
be grateful for the freedom that we take for granted. 

 
November 11, 2024 – Remembrance Day Ceremony in Waskatenau (Jered) 

 Laid a wreath on behalf of the County. The County donated $200 to the Waskatenau Legion.   
 

November 12, 2024 – Smoky Lake Region Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee  
 Dominique Céré became the Chairperson and Leroy Kunyk became the Vice-Chairperson. 
 Agreed to incorporate the draft schedules; 911 Next gen dispatch, Fee for Services, Water Usage, 

and Fire Department Insurance into the Regional Fire Rescue Bylaw for the next Meeting. 
 

November 13, 2024 – Joint Health & Safety Committee (Jered & Dominique) 
 Adam Shupenia & Brett Rurka were acclaimed as Co-Chairpersons. 
 The Visitor Check-In / Check-Out safety policy was amended to include a visitor orientation. 
 Implemented and weekly Emergency Eye Wash & Shower Weekly inspection checklist. 
 Amended the County Council Statement of Commitment with the current CAO info. 
 Received updates on training and reviewed 10 incidents. 

 
November 14, 2024 – Regular Council Meeting 

 Members from the Bonnie Lake Community attended as a delegation to talk about the need to 
upgrade amenities; Council responded by providing grant program information and will 
determine in-kind assistance required. 

 Approved two backsloping applications. 
 Rescinded Policy Statement No. 01-22-01 Policy Committee Terms of Reference, due to 

redundancy. 
 Amended Policy Statement No. 08-13-01: Disposal of Assets, and updated the name to “Disposal 

of Surplus Equipment”. 
 Set the Remuneration for Public-at-Large to $175 per meeting day. 
 Renewed the agreement with Capital Region Assessment Services Commission for three more 

years to take care of Local & Composite Assessment Review Boards (LARB & CARB) Services. 
 Gave Second Reading to Bylaw No. 1464-24: Non-Residential Development Municipal Tax 

Incentive. 

patti
Typewritten Text
#9.5



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 
November 8, 2024, to January 16, 2025 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 Approved to advertise for a Returning Officer to conduct the Year-2025 Municipal Election. 
 Approved to advertise a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Recreational Area Facility Supervision and 

Cleaning Services for 3 independent contracts: Contract 1: Hanmore Lake East, Hanmore Lake 
West, and Island Lake; Contract 2: Mons Lake; and Contract 3: Bellis Beach, with the option to 
include Kaduk Lake. 

 The Village of Waskatenau Council was a delegation to request County Council’s reconsideration 
in providing consent to the Village to acquire the lands north of, and adjacent to the Village; 
Council responded by rescinding the previous denial motion and approve to provide consent. 

 Approved to provide $240.00 to the Smoky Lake Christmas Hamper Program. 
 
November 15, 2024 – Smoky Lake Foundation Meeting (Jered & Dominique) 

 Received updates from the Foundation CAO, highlighting the annual fire alarm and sprinkler 
system inspection is complete. 

 A portable marketing sign will be placed outside of Vilna aimed to increase occupancy.  
 Received reports for the year-to-date Financial Statements, Capital & Operating budget, and 

occupancy reports. 
 Reallocated 2024 capital budget funds intended for the Bar-V-Nook dishwasher replacement that 

was repaired instead of replaced, to electric beds & additional dining room table and chairs. 
 
November 20, 2024 – Budget Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Adopted the 2025 Natural Gas System Operating Budget with a total revenue of $3,121,900 and 
total expenditures of $3,246,900 (including amortization). 

 Adopted the 2025 Natural Gas System Capital Budget with a total revenue of $169,000 and total 
expenditures of $289,000. 

 Approved to increase the budgeted contribution amount towards the Smoky Lake Regional 
Heritage Board to be $35,000.00 in Years 2025, 2026, and 2027. 

 Received information in respect to the gap between tax revenue & inflation and the impact that 
previous 0% tax increases have created on the County’s revenue which impairs the ability to 
replace capital items as needed. 

 
November 21, 2024 - Smoky Lake Physicians & Healthcare Professionals Committee (Jered & Dominique) 

 Discussed community support for Internationally Educated Nurses arriving in Smoky Lake with the 
Town’s FCSS Director. 

 Reviewed the Physician and Health Care Committee Bylaw to determine any updates needed. 
 Received information on Health System Refocus Legislative Amendments, and the New Alberta 

Health Advisory Councils. 
 Agreed to apply for the Rural Health Professional Action Plan (RhPAP) Attraction and Retention 

Grant of $1,000.00 with the intention of using it for the Professional Recognition program. 
 Received the 2024 Retention and Recruitment Financial position as of October 31, 2024 and 

recommended the 2025 budget be approved by each municipality’s Council. 
 
November 22, 2024 – Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Evaluation Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Council, in the absence of the CAO, discussed the work performance of the CAO and compiled the 
information in preparation for further review with the CAO present. 
 

December 4, 2024 – Committee of the Whole Council Meeting (All Council) 



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 
November 8, 2024, to January 16, 2025 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 Received information relating to Victim Services, RCMP, Prosecution, and Rural Crime, from the 
Delegations: Smoky Lake RCMP Detachment Commander Sgt. Anita Doktor, Smoky Lake Area 
Victims Services Unit Advocate Sara McCullough, RCMP Eastern Alberta District (EAD) C/Supt. 
Gary Graham and Supt. Tony Hanson, and Patricia Hankinson, Deputy Chief Crown Prosecutor, 
Fort Saskatchewan Prosecutor’s Office. 

 Continued the Chief Administrative Officer’s Evaluation. 
 
December 11, 2024 – Smoky Lake Regional Fire & Rescue Committee 

 Reviewed draft policies for Firefighter Respiratory Protection Program, Firefighter Compensation 
and Occupational Health and Safety-Contact Report. 

 Agreed to acknowledge local businesses whose staff are volunteer firefighters with a framed 
certificate of recognition and appreciation. 

 
December 12, 2024 – Regular Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Amended Policy Statement No. 03-39-13: Dust Control, to recoup the actual cost of Blade Mix Oil 
dust control by reducing the length from 150 meters at $3,000 to 100 meters at $2,700, and 
changed the application deadline from May 1st to May 31st. 

 Approved a backsloping application. 
 Approved to write off penalties in the amount of $493.38 on roll # 17590542 in response to the 

written & in-person request from the landowner. 
 Gave 1st Reading to Bylaw No. 1467-24 to redistrict and reclassify a parcel of land 2 miles south of 

Warspite, (Plan 9121735, Lot A) and scheduled a Public Hearing, to be held on February 13, 2025, 
at 9:15 am. 

 Accepted an offer to lease SW 12-61-16-W4M, from Clear Hills Grazing Association, for $1,400.00 
per year for 5-years. 

 Approved to advertise a Limited Invitation to Tender to lease County lands SE 8-62-13-W4M & 
SW 8-62-13-W4M. 

 Approved to renew the Geographic Information System (GIS) Software & Service for 5 more years. 
 Amended Policy Statement No. 01-45-02: Geographic Information System (GIS), to correct 

outdated information. 
 Approved to provide $2,500 of FCSS grant funds to the Town FCSS and $2,100 to Smoky Lake 

Holubka Dancers. 
 Approved the 2025 Budget for Smoky Lake Region’s Physicians & Health Care Professionals 

Committee with the County’s contribution being $14,650, but agreed to withhold the funds until 
the Committee’s surplus has been diminished. 

 Approved to donate $100 to the Smoky Lake Food Bank on behalf of the 20th Annual Charity Dart 
Shoot in memory of Cathy and Tom Bullas. 

 Agreed in partnership with the Members of N. E. Muni-Corr Ltd., to support an Alberta Community 
Partnership (ACP) 2024-25 Grant application for creating nine staging area design plans for 
Alberta’s Iron Horse Trail within Waskatenau, Smoky Lake, St. Paul, Heinsburg, Elk Point, 
Bonnyville, Ardmore, and at the Beaver River Trestle. 

 Appointed Kierstin Dubitz, as the Acting Agricultural Fieldman. 
 Appointed Chandler Kerr, as the designated Bylaw Enforcement Officer. 
 Appointed Jasmine Schaub, as the designated Director of Emergency Management (DEM). 
 Approved a winter haul road agreement with DDC Sand + Gravel + Concrete, provided the 

conditions are right, from Twp Rd 610 South on Rge Rd 181 to Twp Rd 604 & West to Hwy 831. 



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 
November 8, 2024, to January 16, 2025 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 Approved the 2025 Interim Municipal Budget, with revenues of $20,841,629 and total 
Expenditures of $22,885,929 including amortization expense of $2,044,300. 

 Approved the Ten-Year Capital Budget for 2025 to 2034. 
 Acknowledged the discontinuation of January 7th being recognized as “Ukrainian” Christmas and 

reopened the offices for that day. 
 Approved to name: Smoky Lake Food Bank, as the chosen recipient to receive a $3,500 donation 

from Gas Alberta through the Gas Alberta Gives Back program. 
 Approved a time extension for the loan re-payment of $100,000.00 to be received from the MCC 

for Smoky Lake Development Corp., subject to the entire principal of loan being repaid in full on 
or before March 31, 2025. 

 Acknowledged the Probationary Period for the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) Kevin Lucas has 
been successfully completed as of December 12, 2024, & the next evaluation will be June 3, 2025. 

 
December 12, 2024 – Virtual Open House for Smoky Lake County 2025 Budget (All Council) 

 There were 18 participants including Council and Staff. 
 To review the presentation, please visit: https://www.smokylakecounty.ab.ca/finance 

 
December 16, 2024 – Smoky Lake Agricultural Society Meeting (Jered) 

 Grant approval for HVAC system to be replaced in March/April.  
 Finalized the December 28th, New Year celebration event.  
 The Ag. Society attended the Town Council meeting as a delegation, to ask for increased funding 

and the Town agreed to increase funding and in-kind services.   
 
December 17, 2024 – Smoky Lake Region Intermunicipal Collaboration Committee 

 Agreed to the first 2 pages of the draft Inter-Municipal Regional Fire Rescue Services Bylaw which 
will have an agreement attached as a schedule. 

 Directed the CAOs to work collaboratively to draft a policy by February 2025, to address holding 
each respect Municipality accountable for the collection of their fire services fees. 

 
December 18, 2024 – Joint Health & Safety Committee Meeting (Jered & Dominque) 

 Appointed 17 employees as Members to the Committee. 
 Reviewed 11 incidents and 2 nears misses. 
 Received a report on training taken, upcoming training, and safety program updates. 
 Amended Safety Policy Statement No. 07-31-03: Cold Weather Mobilization. 

 
December 18, 2024 – Information Session on Changes to Policing Legislation (Jered) 

 This information session was poorly attended. It was intended to cover information related to 
policing legislation for communities policed by the RCMP under the Provincial Police Service 
Agreement (PPSA) that will be represented by the Provincial Police Advisory Board, following the 
Police Amendment Act, 2022 (PAA), which passed in December 2022. 

 The Police Governance Regulation and Police Governance (Ministerial) Regulation, both come into 
force on March 1, 2025, which provide further information in connection with these civilian 
bodies.  

 
December 20, 2024 – Smoky Lake Foundation Meeting (Jered & Dominique)  



Reeve’s Report 
Jered Serben: Reeve and Councillor for Division 5 
November 8, 2024, to January 16, 2025 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 Received updates from the Foundation CAO, highlighting that new artwork will be installed for 
Bar-V-Nook dining room and Pumpkin Neighbourhood, a new maintenance worker has been hired 
for Vilna Lodge, and working on retrofitting warm white LED for all dining rooms. 

 Received reports for the year-to-date Financial Statements, Capital & Operating budget, and 
occupancy reports. 

 
December 20, 2024 – Policing Study – Stakeholder Interview (All Council) 

 The intent of this study was to analyze the current state of policing in the community, to gather 
from Council’s perspective, aiming to address current policing challenges and explore 
opportunities for enhancing public safety. 

 
January 9, 2025 – Regular Council Meeting (All Council) 

 Gave 3rd & Final Reading to Bylaws 1468-25, 1469-25, and 1470-25, to designate three Municipal 
Historic Resources: Bellis Store & Heritage Shoppe; White Earth School Hall; and MacDonald 
Stopping House General Store & Pine Creek Post Office. 

 Amended Policy Statement No. 62-05-07: Grasshopper Control Compensation, to align with the 
County not directly providing grasshopper control service. 

 Adopted Policy Statement No. 62-08-01: Agricultural Use of Municipal Right of Way, which allows 
permits haying and rescinded Policy Statement No. 62-17-02: License of Occupation of Road 
Allowance for Ranching and Farming Purposes 

 
January 13, 2025 – Joint Municipalities Meeting (All Council) 

 Received an update from Sgt. Doktor: Cst. Lidstone is being transferred and the Detachment will 
be getting someone to replace him. The Members will be working closely and utilizing the 
County’s new Community Peace Officer. The Victim Service Unit is up and running out of the 
Detachment. 

 The Ukraine Chamber of Commerce, President Vitaliy Milentyev, encouraged the Smoky Lake 
Region to continue to support Ukraine. 

 Smoky Lake Regional Heritage Board, Chairperson Norreen Easterbrook, provided a presentation 
with recommendations to collaboratively manage historic resources to increase historic tourism. 

 Discussed the decline of volunteers causing financial impacts on municipalities. 
 MLA Glenn van Dijken, spoke about the upgrades intended for Hwy 28, including a roundabout 

installation for the intersection at Hwy 855. He also acknowledged the meeting Premier Smith 
had with Donald Trump and expressed concerns over tariffs.  

 
Other Community Events attended: 

 December 6th, Waskatenau Village light up 
 December 19th, H. A. Kostash School Christmas concert 
 December 28th, Smoky Lake Agricultural Society New Year Family Concert Event 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Jered Serben 
jserben@smokylakecounty.ab.ca Cell: 780-656-5244 
 
More information about County meetings, minutes, agendas, bylaws, policies, and departments, is 
available at:  www.smokylakecounty.ab.ca 



patti
Typewritten Text
#10.1



patti
Typewritten Text
#10.2









 

 

January 2025 

 

Dear Reeve/Mayor & CAO,                                                                        

 

Re:   RMA 2025 Member Visit Scheduling  

The RMA schedules council member visits with all our members on three -year rotation. We are pleased to 
advise that your municipality is on the roster for our 2025 member visit schedule and are looking forward to 
connecting with you and your council. 

The purpose of these visits is for the RMA President, your District Director, and members of our administration is 
to travel to each municipality to meet in the member’s home base and this provides a great opportunity to learn 
about our members.  Member visits provide valuable insight for the RMA board and staff, and we have found 
that the information shared also provides unique perspective on local initiatives and approaches to issues 
impacting rural municipalities.  We appreciate your effort to accommodate our visit to your municipality.   

Scheduling Options 

Recognizing scheduling can be a challenge, we have found the following meeting options are the most beneficial 
for both our members and RMA attendees:  

1. A standard 1-hour meeting, either attached to a council meeting, or stand-alone separate in-person 
event; or   

2. A more extended meeting (2 – 3 hours) where we can learn more about your operations and what 
makes your municipality unique.  

If given a choice, the RMA appreciates the opportunity to meet outside of a regular council meeting to provide 
more time for discussion. Further, members have often used these stand-alone meetings as opportunities to 
highlight unique elements of their municipalities, often engaging in a tour of facilities or inviting department 
leads in to join and engage in discussion.   

To make our visits cost-effective and time-effective, the RMA will attempt to meet with two municipalities on 
one day within a driving distance of each other (i.e. usually within the same district). As such, we have limited 
the longer meeting option to 3 hours or less to facilitate scheduling, and we will seek opportunities to meet with 
more than one member in a district daily.  

Your Availability 

To get started, we request a response regarding your general availability. Specifically:  

a) Your preference of Member Visit option: 
1. Standard 1-hour meeting 
2. Longer familiarization meeting (up to 3 hours) 

b) Your general council availability per month up to and including September plus any other meetings 
when all of council will be together. Include potential stand-alone dates separate from your meetings if 
possible. 

c) The key contact’s name, email address, and phone number to schedule the meeting. 

patti
Typewritten Text
#10.3



  

In the table below, we have identified typical monthly dates that will prove difficult for either myself or your 
district director to attend so that other date options can be considered. 

Please send your responses to the above-noted questions to Natalie Bartlett at natalie@RMAlberta.com or 
780.886.7937 by January 31, as member visits will commence as soon as possible.  

Your attention to this matter is greatly appreciated. I look forward to our upcoming visit. 

Sincerely,  

 
Kara Westerlund  

President 

 

2025 RMA Member Visit Rotation: 

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 

Lethbridge Lacombe Athabasca Peace Lamont 

Cardston Kneehill Lesser Slave River Birch Hills Smoky Lake 

Newell  Starland Parkland Greenview St. Paul 

 Red Deer Yellowhead  Northern Lights Minburn 

 Ponoka Wetaskiwin Clear Hills  

Monthly Conflict 
dates for 

President & 
District 1 Director 

Monthly Conflict 
dates for President 

& District 2 
Director 

Monthly Conflict 
dates for President 

& District 3 
Director 

Monthly Conflict 
dates for President 
& District 4 Director 

Monthly Conflict 
dates for 

President & 
District 5 Director 

Twice per Month 
(Tuesday) 

Twice per Month 
(Tuesday) 

Twice per Month 
(Tuesday) 

Twice per Month 
(Tuesday) 

Twice per Month 
(Tuesday) 

1st & 3rd Wed 1st & 3rd Tues Every 2 weeks on a 
Tuesday 

Twice a month on 
Mondays   

2nd & 4th Tuesday 

 

mailto:natalie@RMAlberta.com


 

January 6, 2025 

RMA Board Governance Review Member Survey 
Every four years, the RMA undertakes a board governance review to review and update the association’s 
governance process to ensure that it aligns with its strategic plan and meets the needs of the RMA membership. 
To do so, the RMA has formed a Board Governance Review Committee (BGRC) comprised of one representative 
from each RMA district and a non-voting chairperson.  

This survey is intended to gather feedback from RMA member municipalities on the key governance-related 
themes that the BGRC is considering. The survey may be completed by councils as a whole or by individual 
elected officials. Individual survey responses will be confidential, and only viewed by the BGRC and RMA staff.  

Please complete the survey by February 5, 2025.  

The committee has organized the questions into six categories:  

 Board Structure  
 District Representation 
 Board Election Processes 
 Member Connection 
 Member Input  
 Board Compensation  
 
Each category below also includes an introductory section providing a brief background on RMA’s current 
governance approach and, where applicable, how similar organizations elsewhere in Canada function. 

Please include answers to the two introductory questions below. We encourage responses from both entire 
councils as well as responses from individuals.  

1. Please indicate your municipality below.   

 

 

2. Is this response a council position or an individual position? 

 

 

Please provide input to any of the remaining questions as you see fit and skip questions to which you have no 
input or opinion. 

Board Structure 
The RMA board consists of seven members. Several other provincial municipal associations elsewhere in Canada 
operate with large boards (i.e. fifteen and larger) and two levels of governance – an overall board and a smaller 
executive committee (President plus at least two VPs). As RMA is a relatively small board and has fewer member 
municipalities than most municipal associations in Canada, it does not operate with an executive committee.  

patti
Typewritten Text
#10.4



  

Other municipal associations in Canada determine board representatives based on geography, municipality type, 
or a combination of both. RMA’s board is structured geographically with members of each of the five RMA 
districts electing a representative onto the board. The President and Vice President are elected by the entire 
membership.  

RMA board members are unique in that they also serve as board members on the RMA Insurance Board, the 
Genesis Reciprocal Board and provide the governance for the Canoe Procurement Group of Canada. RMA 
Insurance works to help organizations gain the safety and service that they need, while helping to control and 
reduce long-term risk-related costs. Genesis is operated and serviced by RMA insurance and is one of the largest 
reciprocal insurance exchanges in Canada. Canoe Procurement is one of the largest public sector buying groups 
in the country. Effective oversight of these business entities requires sound governance and significant effort 
and training from the RMA Board of Directors to understand the complexities of the insurance industry, national 
procurement legislation and the benefit of focused relationships that enhance business offerings.  

This section seeks input on how you think the RMA board structure is working for members. 

3. Does the current board composition and size (one President, one Vice President, five district directors) 
adequately represent the full (voting) membership? If not, how should it change? 

 

 

4. Is the number of municipalities represented by each board director appropriate? If not, what is an 
appropriate level of representation? 

 

 

5. Is a geographically based board representation the ideal structure? If not, what alternate structures 
should be considered? 

 

 

District Representation 
The RMA has 69 full member municipalities, who have voting authority and representation on the RMA board. 

The RMA full membership is divided into five districts covering all of Alberta. The RMA Members Map provides a 
breakdown of each district and the municipalities that are located within them. 

Each RMA district functions as an autonomous entity with its own chair, governance structure, administrative 
support, and funding mechanisms.  

This section seeks input on whether current district boundaries and district representation adequately reflects 
the needs of RMA members.  

6. Does the current district structure and boundaries properly represent RMA’s full members? If not, how 
could they be changed? 

 

https://rmalberta.com/insurance/
https://rmalberta.com/insurance/
https://genesis.rmainsurance.com/about-us/
https://canoeprocurement.ca/
https://rmalberta.com/about/members/


  

7. Please share your view on the relationship between RMA and the districts. Does this relationship need 
to be more clearly defined or otherwise changed?  

 

Board Election Processes 
The RMA facilitates its election process leading up to and during its annual fall convention. The RMA uses a 
returning officer and an advance nomination deadline. Candidate speeches, the formal election, and requiring 
an AGM motion to accept the election results all happen during the convention. This approach aligns with most 
municipal associations across Canada. 

Elected officials of the member municipalities of each district elect a representative to the board. The elected 
officials of all member municipalities (approximately 460 elected officials) elect the President and Vice 
President. The term for each director, Vice President, and President is two years, with appointments staggered. 
There is no limit on how many terms a director or Vice President can serve, but a President has a term limit of six 
years (three terms). There is also no overall limit on how long an individual may serve on the Board of Directors 
in multiple positions. 

This section seeks input on the RMA board election process.  

8. Currently, only the RMA President has a term limit. Should there be a term limit for Vice President and 
district director roles? If so, how many years should the term limit be? 

 

 

9.  Should there be a maximum number of consecutive years that an individual, in more than one position, 
can serve on the RMA Board? If so, what should the number of years be? 

 

 

10.  Please suggest any improvements to the RMA’s board election process. 

 

 

Member Connection 
Effective governance requires regular connections with members to support information-sharing and 
accountability.  

The RMA utilizes various mechanisms to support such connection. This includes the use of resolutions, member 
surveys, attendance at district meetings, member committees, conventions, and the use of technology such as 
webinars, video conferencing, and e-newsletters. 

This section seeks input on how RMA’s Board of Directors connects with members. 

11. What are the most effective and valuable ways that RMA connects with members? 

 



  

 

12. Does the RMA board sufficiently connect with members currently? If not, how can connection be 
enhanced? 

 

13. To assist the RMA Board of Directors advocacy efforts, what role should municipalities play in providing 
data to RMA? 

 

Member Direction 
The RMA is a member-driven organization that utilizes resolutions to guide much of its advocacy. The RMA has a 
detailed resolution policy that formalizes the resolution process. Key aspects of the resolution policy include 
establishing a Resolutions Committee, requiring district endorsement of resolutions, clarifying different types of 
resolutions and requiring a specific resolution debate and voting process.  

In recent years, the number of resolutions endorsed by members has increased. RMA has recently increased 
capacity to enhance research and advocacy on resolutions. In addition to resolutions, much of RMA’s advocacy is 
focused on addressing contentious or time-sensitive emerging issues linked to policy decisions made by 
provincial or federal levels of government. It is important that RMA strikes a balance between advocating for 
member priorities linked to resolutions with emerging issues.  

This section seeks input on how effective you think that the resolution process is as a means for members to 
provide RMA with advocacy direction, and how you think the RMA balances the advocacy of both emerging 
issues and endorsed resolutions.  

14.  What role (if any) should districts play in vetting resolutions prior to being presented at conventions? 

 

 

15.  Should there be a limit on the number of resolutions submitted for voting at each convention? If you 
think that the number of resolutions should be limited, how could this be implemented? 

 

 

16.  Is the current resolution process effective in establishing membership direction for advocacy? If not, 
how can it be improved? 

 

 

17.  Should advocacy efforts on endorsed resolutions and emerging issues be prioritized/ranked by RMA? If 
so, on what basis? 

 

 

https://rmalberta.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/GOV-04-RMA-Resolution-Process.pdf


  

18.  What would be the most effective way for the RMA to report on the advocacy status of both endorsed 
resolutions and emerging issues? 

 

 

Board Compensation 
RMA board compensation is reviewed by the BGRC once every four years. Cross-jurisdictional municipal 
association comparisons are considered alongside other Alberta association comparisons to ensure that the 
policy reflects standards across the province. Board compensation has not been updated since the 2016 Board 
Governance Review. Attached is the current RMA compensation policy plus the most recent 2023-2024 
Summary of Directors’ Compensation and Expenses. 

This section seeks input on the fair compensation of RMA board members.  

 

19.  Should RMA Board of Director per diem expenses be tied to financial indicators (ie: inflation, rolling 
averages, consumer pricing index, etc.)? 

 

 

20. Please provide any comments or suggestions related to RMA board compensation.  

 

 

Other 
21.  Please provide any other input or comments you believe will be helpful to the RMA Board Governance 

Review Committee. 

https://rmalberta.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/GOV-07-Board-of-Directors-Per-Diem-Expenses-and-Benefits-Policy.pdf
https://rmalberta.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Board-of-Directors-Per-Diem-and-Expense-Summary-2024.pdf
https://rmalberta.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/Board-of-Directors-Per-Diem-and-Expense-Summary-2024.pdf


Taxes (net)

Legislative

Administration

Communications

GIS

Other Government Services
250.00 STARS hockey tourn 1,500.00 Ann Chorney Library annual donation

360,000.00 Aspen View 1,500.00 SL Public Library annual donation
200.00 Mighty Moose Endurance 500.00 SL Riding Club annual donation
500.00 Randy Russ Barrel Race 1,500.00 Vilna Library annual donation
500.00 Archery Tournament 6,000.00 Stars Annual Donation

1,000.00 Kalyna annual donation 3,000.00 Annual COPS Donation
1,500.00 Threshing bee annual donation 200.00 Robotics Tournament

500.00 HAK Girls Rugby 350.00 SL Holubka Dancers
500.00 UCC-AB Prov Council 1,000.00 Vilna Fair Days
500.00 Jr Golf 500.00 Waskatenau Fair Days
240.00 Christmas Hamper 500.00 MS Society
200.00 Smoky Lake Remembrance Day 200.00 Waskatenau Remembrance Day

1,000.00 Fireworks 250.00 Jasper

383,890.00

balance remaining 6,110.00

Fire Services

Bylaw

Transportation

Environmental Services

FCSS
1706 Wask Library 6500 SL Library

1875 Vilna Ag Society 2000

1500 Legion 1290

6500 Fire Camp 2500
Smoky Lake 
Minor Hockey

97506.86 Aspenview FSLW

121,377.86$ 506.00$           

Planning & Communication

Agriculture Service Board

Economic Development

There are substantial savings in the Planning department due to a vacant position  along with higher than usual development fee.  
We are estimating a surplus of aproximately $200,000

Position vacancies will provide a surplus of aproximately $50,000

RDCD did not provide a budget for approval. Expenditures to date are $14,237  Dr Recruitement/Retention costs are $14,640

Warspite Community Hall

Friends of Vilan Pool Hall

grant remaining to cover overhead

Costs are high this year because tools etc. that were stolen from Vilna fire department have been replaced.  Advertising is over 
budget due to OHV ban signs. Many costs are billed at year end therefore we can't predit the final number yet.  It should end the 
year within budgets.

There should be a savings in wages/benefits and fuel of about $40,000 due to the temporary position vacancy

There are still invoices being processed for Public works.  Once the reserve transfers are recorded, it is epected to finish off very 
close to budget 

Water may have a surplus of about $25,000.   Bellis Sewer has cost $12,334 to date which is $10,334 over budget.  An 
unexpected repair was necessary, however the additional cost is offset by savings within the Sewer Dept.  No savings are 
expected in the Landfill department.   Garbage truck repairs have resulted in higher parts costs as well as the costs to contract out 
garbage pick up.

2024 FCSS funds granted out are:

Council has spent 95% of the budget. There should be a savings of about $25,000.

Costs are still expected for 2024.    Other Services are over budget by $60,000 - 70,000.  These are the unbudgetet fees to sell 
three properties as well as the consultant for CAO replacement.  The CLH fees will be offset by the land sales revenue.  Salaries 
and wages will end the year on budget.  Additional interest revenue and small savings throughout the department will provide a 
surplus of $200,000

Communications will be close to budget

GIS will be close to budget

The budget for grants was $31,000 plus $360,000 for HAK

Budget to Actual 2024
Notes As At December 31, 2024

Taxes have been levied ($13,601,369 including requisitions).  Some 305.1 assessment changes to linear have decreased the total 
revenue down to $13,489,590 .  

patti
Typewritten Text
#12.1



Legislative

Administration

Council has spent 95% of the budget. There should be a savings of about $25,000.

Costs are still expected for 2024.    Other Services are over budget by $60,000 - 70,000.  These are the unbudgetet fees to sell 
three properties as well as the consultant for CAO replacement.  The CLH fees will be offset by the land sales revenue.  Salaries 
and wages will end the year on budget.  Additional interest revenue and small savings throughout the department will provide a 
surplus of $200,000

Recreation & Cultural Services

Gas

Natural Gas will be billed mid January.  After the billing is complete, we will be able to provide a  final estimate

 Total Gas Rev  Purchase  Capital  Gross Marg Profit Marg
2024 1,316,234.28$                                 729,722.12-$              114,045.80-$           474,490.38$             64%

2023 1,863,967.45$                                 1,275,933.53-$           118,689.19-$           469,344.73$             37%

2022 3,224,440.00$                                 2,692,763.00-$           144,974.00-$           386,703.00$             14%

2021 2,703,448.00$                                 1,942,250.00-$           147,212.00-$           613,986.00$             32%

2020 1,975,881.00$                                 1,261,073.00-$           149,802.00-$           565,006.00$             45%

2019 1,938,495.00$                                 1,202,745.00-$           148,785.00-$           586,965.00$             49%

Accounts Receivable Total Current Over 30 days
Receivables 
under review

80,182.51$                         29,109.76$         $       4,344.73  $       46,728.02 

Taxes Receivable Total 2024 o/s
Arrears prior 

to 2023
Allowance for 

write off

Percentage of 2024 taxes collected: 97% 3,043,772.81$                    451,259.51$       $2,592,513.30  $  2,202,904.40 

Natural Gas Receivable Total Current Over 90 days
$15,358.24 -$15,055.52  $     37,249.05 

Warspite Water Receivable Total Current Over 90 days
3,144.56$                           514.04-$              $       1,545.11 

The odorant has a profit is $135,969

The CNG program has been cancelled

Gross Margin to Nov 30 is $375,308.  December gas has not been billed yet.

December has not been billed yet

December has not been billed yet

There should be a surplus of aproximately $100,000

Natural Gas Administration is under budget



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 12 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes

Farmland & Residential $4,293,462 $4,300,093 $6,631 0.15%
Machinery & Equipment 1,357,698 1,357,698 0 (0.00%)
Non - Residential 1,380,811 1,318,187 -62,624 (4.75%)
Linear 6,445,140 6,435,843 -9,297 (0.14%)
Provincial Government 12,479 72,831 60,352 82.87%
Sewer Levy 9,625 9,040 -585 (6.47%)

Other Income
Well Drilling/Drill Rigs 943 5,500 4,557 82.85%

Penalties 270,855 85,200 -185,655 (217.90%)

majority of penalties 
from defunct oil and 
gas- not collectable

User Fees and Sales of Goods 602,483 641,950 39,467 6.15%
Investment Income 823,069 693,498 -129,571 (18.68%)
Development Levies 360,296 69,000 -291,296 (422.17%)

Licenses and Permits 230,682 224,500 -6,182 (2.75%)
Aggregate fees to be 
transferred to reserve

Sales to Other Governments 258,382 336,135 77,753 23.13%
Grants

Provincial Conditional - Operating 794,388 609,753 -184,635 (30.28%)
CLC 134,478 113,230 -21,248 (18.77%)

Transfer from Operating Reserve 1,035,000 1,035,000 0.00%
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 18,009,791 17,307,458 -702,333 (4.06%)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages 6,158,465 5,822,998 -335,467 (5.76%)
Benefits 559,925 1,243,983 684,058 54.99%
WCB 59,785 85,000 25,215 29.67%
Other Wages 1,250 10,000 8,750 87.50%

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 24,862 45,700 20,838 45.60%
Meals and Lodgings 52,716 95,360 42,644 44.72%
Membership & Conference Fees 52,638 60,435 7,797 12.90%
Freight, Express, Postage 27,293 42,250 14,957 35.40%
Telephone & Communication 67,285 98,150 30,865 31.45%
Training 81,378 112,700 31,322 27.79%
Advertising, Printing, Subscriptions 44,702 60,550 15,848 26.17%
Accounting & Auditing 33,500 34,000 500 1.47%
Legal Fees 9,186 40,000 30,814 77.03%
Assessor Fees 146,762 146,000 -762 (0.52%)

Engineering Fees 565,896 133,670 -432,226 (323.35%)

Includes Engineering 
fees for bridges which 
will be capitalized

Other Consulting 63,168 62,700 -468 (0.75%)
Includes fees to 
auction land

Computer Programing 132,040 187,417 55,377 29.55%
Insurance 166,518 271,261 104,743 38.61%
Other Services 1,110,582 1,648,358 537,776 32.62%

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 92,284 95,830 3,546 3.70%
Fuel/Parts/ Etc 1,351,425 1,547,100 216,308 1981.00%

Offset to Road Plan -1,254,584 -1,618,946 -1,639,579 101.27%
fuel & equip costs 
allocted to road proj -1254584

Gravel 529,554 490,000 -39,554 (8.07%)
Chemicals 76,002 40,000 -36,002 (90.00%) weed control
Computer Supplies 30,175 69,148 38,973 56.36%

Taxes levied = 
$13,489,590 (budget 
$13,484,652)

Payroll savings 
$380,000

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Municiipal 

Budget to Actual Report



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 12 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

Utilities 166,468 220,999 54,531 24.67%
Employee Recognition 15,187 30,000 14,813 49.38%
Other General Supplies 851,421 819,800 -31,621 (3.86%)

Transfers to Local Boards & Agencies 675,978 678,794 2,816 0.41%
includes transfer to 
Aspen View

Write Offs 7,640 3,000 -4,640 (154.67%)
Bank Charges & Interest 5,277 6,100 823 13.48%
Requisitions 2,653,262 2,583,857 -69,405 (2.69%)
Contingency 13,749 13,749 100.00%
Amortization 2,044,300 2,044,300 100.00%

14,558,040 17,224,263 1,411,639 8.20%
Total Operations 3,451,751 83,195 -2,113,973

Capital Funding
Sale of Capital Assets 1,110,739 1,306,699 195,960 15.00% land sales
Provinical Capital Grants 646,464 4,074,411 3,427,947 84.13%
Transfer from Reserve 1,431,717 1,431,717 100.00%

Capital Funding 1,757,203 6,812,827 5,055,624 74.21%
Capital Expenses

Buildings & Land -1,535 14,000 15,535 110.97%
Transfer to Reserve 820,000 1,428,000 608,000 42.58%
Land Improvements 2,203,023 18,000 -2,185,023 ########## Gravel pit
Engineering Structures 1,275,216 6,011,475 6,011,475 100.00%
Equipment 833,598 874,427 40,829 4.67%
Vehicles 245,895 594,419 348,524 58.63%

5,376,197 8,940,321 4,839,340 54.13%
Total Capital -3,618,994 -2,127,494 216,284 (10.17%)

Net Profit/Loss -167,243 -2,044,299 -1,897,688 92.83%

Remove Amortization 2,044,300 2,044,300 100.00%
Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) -167,243 1 146,612 #########

2025-01-06 &P of &N 
11:01 AM 



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 12 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR % Notes

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes
Other Income
Grants

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages $359,102 $362,792 $3,690 1.02%
Benefits 79,311 77,105 -2,206 (2.86%)

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 17,211 28,200 10,989 38.97%
Meals and Lodgings 18,167 23,770 5,603 23.57%
Membership & Conference Fees 12,979 15,185 2,206 14.53%
Telephone & Communication 6,350 6,100 -250 (4.10%)
Other Services 1,500 1,500 100.00%

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 243 3,000 2,757 91.90%
Computer Supplies 104 3,000 2,896 96.52%

493,467 520,652 27,184 5.22%

Total Operations -493,467 -520,652 -27,184 5.22%

Capital Funding

Capital Expenses

Net Profit/Loss -493,467 -520,652 -27,184 5.22%

Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) -493,467 -520,652 -27,184 5.22%

Expense Breakdown by Division
1 -$11,078 -$12,985 -$1,907
2 -$16,098 -$14,600 $1,498
3 -$6,829 -$12,885 -$6,056
4 -$10,739 -$19,700 -$8,961
5 -$9,963 -$13,585 -$3,622

-$54,707 -$73,755 -$19,048

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Council 

Budget to Actual Report



YTD YTD
ACTUAL BUDGET
Period 12 2024 BUDGET VARIANCE VAR %

OPERATING REVENUE
Taxes
Other Income

Penalties $22,004 $10,000 ($12,004) (120.04%)
User Fees and Sales of Goods 2,094,436 2,970,620 876,184 29.49%
Investment Income 35,000 35,000 100.00%
Licenses and Permits 9,600 9,600 100.00%

Grants
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,116,440 3,025,220 908,780 30.04%

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, and Benefits

Salaries &Wages 848,043 889,889 41,846 4.70%
Benefits 170,627 144,020 -26,607 (18.47%)

Contracted and General Services
Mileage 168 3,000 2,832 94.41%
Meals and Lodgings 9,894 18,500 8,606 46.52%
Membership & Conference Fees 31,453 38,000 6,547 17.23%
Freight, Express, Postage 8,783 12,600 3,817 30.29%
Telephone & Communication 13,579 20,400 6,821 33.44%
Training 3,846 7,000 3,154 45.06%
Advertising, Printing, Subscriptions 20 2,500 2,480 99.20%
Accounting & Auditing 13,150 16,000 2,850 17.81%
Legal Fees 1,000 1,000 100.00%
Engineering Fees 8,912 7,500 -1,412 (18.82%)
Other Consulting 633 1,200 567 47.24%
Computer Programing 19,655 30,000 10,345 34.48%
Insurance 28,308 35,000 6,692 19.12%
Other Services 96,290 51,750 -44,540 (86.07%)

Materials, Goods, and Utilities
Office/Food/Janitorial Supplies 7,681 18,200 10,519 57.79%
Fuel/Parts/ Etc 89,371 95,500 6,129 6.42%
Computer Supplies 1,741 19,000 17,259 90.84%
Utilities 11,051 12,120 1,069 8.82%
Employee Recognition 2,000 2,000 100.00%
Other General Supplies 815,893 1,550,042 734,149 47.36%

Write Offs -519 519 0.00%
Amortization 245,000 245,000 100.00%

2,178,579 3,220,221 1,041,642 32.35%
Total Operations -62,139 -195,001 -132,862 68.13%

Capital Funding
Transfer from Reserve 267,000 267,000 100.00%

Capital Funding 267,000 267,000 100.00%
Capital Expenses

Buildings & Land 140,000 140,000 100.00%
Transfer to Reserve 50,000 50,000 100.00%
Equipment 14,118 60,000 45,882 76.47%
Vehicles 1,798 67,000 65,202 97.32%

15,916 317,000 301,085 94.98%
Total Capital -15,916 -50,000 -34,085 68.17%

Net Profit/Loss -78,055 -245,001 -166,946 68.14%

Remove Amortization 245,000 245,000 100.00%
Adjusted Surplus (Deficit) -78,055 -1 78,054 #########

2025-01-06 &P of &N 
11:01 AM 

SMOKY LAKE COUNTY
For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 

 
Natural Gas 

Budget to Actual Report



Dept BUDGET ACTUAL Notes
ADM AGGREGATE LICENSE REV TO RESERVE 200,000                   from aggregate license

LAND SALES 701,000‐                   820,000‐                   ( budget = cash reveune)

TRANSFER LAND SALES TO RESERVE 820,000                  

ADM Admin Total 501,000‐                   ‐                               

Bylaw LIDAR GUN 7,000                      

Bylaw Bylaw Total 7,000                       ‐                               

FIRE MSA 6000 PLUS TIC WITH TRUCK MOUNT 14,435                     14,135                     Town to pay 40%

FIRE AFRRCS RADIO REPLACEMENT 18,500                     8,313                      

Insurance to cover 

10,500

FIRE NEW AFRRCS RADIOS 10,500                     10,165                     Town to pay 40%

FIRE Fire Total 43,435                     32,613                    

PW GRADER RESERVE 500,000                   order in 2025

PW 2022 GRADER ORDERED 659,000                   659,000                  

carried over from prev 

year

PW  PICK UP TRUCK PROGRAM  335,476                  

PW ENTERPRISE 3500 TRUCK PROGRAM  251,943                  

PW NEW SANDER FOR UNIT 435 13,992                     12,574                    

PW GRAVEL DISPOSITIONS PER MOTION 2,200,868               funded from reserve

PW GRAVEL SALES TO RESERVE 27,000                    

PW PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 1,787,411               3,112,408              

E & P SPEDDEN DISTRIBUTION PUMP 6,000                      

E & P SPEDDEN LANDFILL MONITORING WELLS 9,000                      

E & P SL LANDFILL MONITORING WELLS 5,000                      

E & P LAKE BOAT LAUNCH REHAB 8,000                       7,830                      

E & P MOWER X 2 32,000                    

E & P Motion 491‐24 Water Storage 28,000                     27,400                    

E & P ENV & PARKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 88,000                     35,230                    

PLN HISTORIC DESIGNATION PLAQUE 10,000                    

PLN PLANNING TOTAL 10,000                     ‐                               

AG REPLACE FLEX ARM & MOWER 473/474 92,000                     92,000                    

sell old for 30,000 / 

50,000 from reserve

PW AGRICULTURE DEPARTMENT TOTAL 92,000                     92,000                    

MUNICIPAL TOTAL 1,526,846        3,272,251       
GAS Infrastructure Line Replacement 50,000                    

GAS METER READING EQUIPMENT 36,000                    

GAS RMO REPLACEMENT 140,000                  

GAS RMO MODEM REPLACEMENT 16,000                     14,118                    

GAS TRUCK 60,000                    

GAS GPS Unit to Track lines 8,000                      

GAS REFURBISH TRUCK BOX (UNIT 202) 7,000                      

NATURAL GAS TOTAL 317,000           14,118            

Smoky Lake County
2024 Capital Budget

239,966                  

This is an Enterprise 

Leasing error.  We will 

received $590,000 plus 

interest back



patti
Typewritten Text
#12.2

patti
Typewritten Text

patti
Typewritten Text

patti
Typewritten Text


	2.0 - Agenda January 23, 2025
	3.1 - Minutes Regular Council Meeting - Jan. 9, 2025
	7.1 - RFD - Bylaw No. 1464-24 Non-Residential Tax Incentive
	7.1a - RFD - Bylaw No. 1464-24
	7.2 - RFD - FCSS Grant Applications
	7.3 - RFD - Property Tax Sale Results
	7.4 - RFD - Policy 62-06-02 Ag Poster Contest
	7.5 - RFD - Policy 62-28-007 Mowing Program
	7.6 - RFD - Bylaw 1472-25 LUB Amendment from Residential to Ag Land
	7.7 - Alberta CARE (Coordinated Action for Recycling Enterprises) Spring Seminar
	7.8 - RFD - CPO Policies - Primary Hwy Enforcement & Emergency Vehicle Ops
	7.9 - RFD - CPO Policy Annual Reporting
	7.10 - RFD - Ukrainian Twinning MOU with Kosiv
	7.11 - Smoky Lake Regional Heritage Board Recommendations
	7.12 -  RMA Rural Municipalities of Alberta, Spring Convention
	7.13 - Meeting Requests with Ministers at the Spring RMA Convention
	7.13a - Alberta Ministries List (Information)
	7.14 - Bonnie Lake Resort Community in-kind assistance
	7.14a - BLSC to Smoky Lake County - Peter's Letter
	8.1 - CAO Report December - January 2025
	8.2 - Strategic Priorities Progress Update to December 31, 2024
	9.4 - Division 4 Councillor Report
	9.5 - Reeve's Report
	10.1 - CLC - 50 Year Anniversary
	10.2 - Inside Outside Studios Inc - Landowner Map Sales Revenue
	10.3 - 2025 DRAFT RMA Member Visit Invitation
	10.4 - RMA Board Governance Review Committee - Member Survey
	12.1 - Dec 31.2024 report for Jan Council
	1.pdf
	2.pdf
	3.pdf
	4.pdf
	Capital 2024 Dec..pdf

	12.2 - Bills & Accounts Report as of January 23, 2025



